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P ART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in millions, except number of shares and per shareunts)

Assets
Investments
Fixed maturities, at fair valus
Available-for-sale (cost: 201- $2,759.5; 201~ $2,817.2
Equity securities, at fair value (cost: 2C- $332.4; 201+ $307.3)
Other investments (cost: 20- $501.1; 201+~ $488.9)
Shor-term investments, at fair value (cost: 2(- $322.7; 201+ $275.8)
Total investment
Cash
Accrued investment incorn
Premiums receivabl
Reinsurance recoverabl
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortiz:
Current income taxes receivable,
Deferred acquisition costs, r
Ceded unearned premiut
Other asset
Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment exp:
Unearned premiurnr
Accrued underwriting expens
Ceded reinsurance payable,
Funds helc
Senior unsecured fixed rate no
Other indebtednes
Junior subordinated debentu
Deferred tax liabilities, ne
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Shareholders' equit
Common shares - $1.00 par, 500,000,000 sharesragttip37,021,341
and 34,318,224 shares issued and outstandihgat30, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, respectiv
Additional paic-in capital
Treasury shares (9,095,585 and 8,606,489 shademat30, 2015
and December 31, 2014, respectivi
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net ofst
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

* Derived from audited consolidated financial stagats.
See accompany notes.

June 30, December 31
2015 2014 *
(Unaudited)

2,764.( 2,840.%
486.¢€ 486.%
508.¢ 495.1
322.7 275.€
4,082.z 4,097.¢
106.5 81.C
20.6 221
448.¢€ 353.€
1,019.z 997.2
152.2 152.2
76.5 78.6
6.0 14.9
139.5 124.¢
261.€ 207.€
230.7 226.€
6,544.( 6,356.¢
3,078.2 3,042.4
896.4 817.2
118.€ 143.1
261.5 178.€
58.8 55.0
143.¢ 143.€
56.7 62.0
172.7 172.7
41.2 53.0
46.9 41.6
4,875.1 4,709.¢
37.0 34.3
960.€ 836.5
(326.9) (301.4)
920.5 969.4
77.1 108.1
1,668.¢ 1,646.7

6,544.( 6,356.1




ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in millions, except number of shares and per shareunt)

(Unaudited)
For the Three Months Ended June
30, For the Six Months Ended June 30
2015 2014 2015 2014
Premiums and other revent
Earned premium $ 346.C $ 336.1 $ 680.€ $ 661.¢
Net investment incom 21.8 20.6 42.6 43.9
Net realized investment and other ge 5.3 18.5 21.3 29.€
Total revenue 373.1 375.2 744.5 735.5
Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment exper 190.€ 185.1 374.2 367.€
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 139.5 136.¢ 269.1 265.5
Interest expens 4.6 5.1 9.5 10.1
Fee expense, n 0.7 0.1 1.1 15
Foreign currency exchange loss (g¢ 3.0 3.4 (6.6) 3.2
Total expense 338.4 330.5 647.4 647.C
Income before income tax 34.7 447 97.1 87.4
Provision for income taxe 6.8 6.1 104 8.6
Net income $ 279 $ 386 $ 86.7 $ 78.8
Net income per common sha
Basic $ 1.0 $ 134 $ 3.09 $ 2.72
Diluted $ 0.98 $ 132 % 3.03 $ 2.67
Dividend declared per common sh. $ 0.2C $ 0.16 $ 040 $ 0.3C
Weighted average common shal
Basic 27,948,97 28,761,13! 28,038,83I 28,962,40!
Diluted 28,470,74. 29,274,57. 28,573,56. 29,467,71.
For the Three Months Ended June For the Six Months Ended June
30, 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Net realized investment and other gains beforer-than-
temporary impairment loss $ 6.7 $ 19¢ $ 232 $ 31.C
Otherthar-temporary impairment losses recognized in earni
Other-thar-temporary impairment losses on fixed maturi (0.5) (1.2 (0.9) (1.2
Otherthar-temporary impairment losses on equity secur (0.9) (0.2) (1.0) (0.2
Impairment losses recognized in earni (1.4) (1.4) (1.9) (1.4)
Net realized investment and other ge $ 53 % 185 $ 21.3 $ 29.€

See accompanying notes.




ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions)
(Unaudited)
For the Three Months Ended June 30 For the Six Months Ended June 3(C
2015 2014 2015 2014
Net income $ 279 $ 38.€ $ 86.7 $ 78.8
Other comprehensive income (los
Foreign currency translation adjustme 0.5 0.6 (2.6) 0.4
Unrealized gains on securitie
(Losses) gains arising during the y (10.3 49.8 (34.6) 54.9
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedeétincome (9.5) (16.2) (7.0) (16.2)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before (19.3 34.3 (44.2) 39.1
Income tax (benefit) provision related to other poahensive (loss) incom
Unrealized gains (losses) on securit
(Losses) gains arising during the y (7.5) 11.8 (10.3) 15.6
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedehincome (2.8) (3.0 (2.9) (3.1)
Income tax (benefit) provision related to other poemensive (loss) incon (10.3) 8.8 (13.2) 12.5
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of (9.0) 25.5 (31.0) 26.6
Comprehensive incon $ 188 $ 64.1 $ 55.7 $ 105.4

See accompanying notes.




ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by
operating activities
Amortization and depreciatic
Shar+based payments exper
Excess tax benefit from shi-based payment arrangeme
Deferred income tax provision, r
Net realized investment and other ge
Loss on disposals of fixed assets,
Change in
Accrued investment incorr
Receivable:
Deferred acquisition cos
Ceded unearned premiui
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment exp
Unearned premiumr
Ceded reinsurance payable and funds
Income taxe:
Accrued underwriting expens
Other, ne
Cash provided (used) by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Sales of fixed maturity investmer
Maturities and mandatory calls of fixed maturity@stments
Sales of equity securitie
Sales of other investmer
Purchases of fixed maturity investme
Purchases of equity securiti
Purchases of other investme
Change in foreign regulatory deposits and volunpagls
Change in shec-term investment
Settlements of foreign currency exchange forwartdreats
Purchases of fixed asst
Other, ne
Cash (used) provided by investing activil
Cash flows from financing activitie
Activity under stock incentive plar
Repurchase of Company's common sh
Excess tax expense from st-based payment arrangeme
Payment of cash dividends to common shareho
Cash used by financing activiti
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Change in cas
Cash, beginning of peric
Cash, end of perio

See accompanying notes.

(in millions)
(Unaudited)

For the Six Months Ended June 30

2015 2014

$ 86.7 $ 78.8
19.6 18.C
12.9 11.2
(0.1) —
1.6 4.3
(21.9) (29.6)
0.2 —
1.5 1.5
(120.4) 169.C
(15.0) (8.6)
(56.0) 47.9)
41.1 (145.4)
82.7 58.6
87.4 (141.9)
8.7 (13.9)
(31.7) (3.1)
(3.3) 24.2
94.6 (23.5)
564.1 558.C
382.€ 156.¢
33.6 56.7
46.2 17.6
(907.6) (718.9)
(48.0) (12.9)
(61.7) (34.4)
6.8 21.6
(47.5) 28.9
(4.6) 0.1
(14.9) (18.9)
18.6 (15.1)
(31.9) 39.5
(1.4) 2.3
(24.9) (31.9)
0.1 —
(11.9) (8.7)
(37.9) (37.6)
0.2 0.4
255 (21.2)
81.0 157.4
$ 1065 $ 136.




ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentatior

The accompanying consolidated financial statemehfsrgo Group International Holdings, Ltd. (“Argor@up,” “we” or the “Company”anc
its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordaitbeascounting principles generally accepted inltimted States of America (“GAAPTpr
interim financial information and with the instriarts for Form 10-Q and Article 10 of RegulationXSThe preparation of interim financ
statements in conformity with GAAP requires managetrto make estimates and assumptions that affecteported amounts of assets
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets laddllities at the date of the financial statensesbd reported amounts of revenues and exg
during the reporting period. The major estimatdiected in our consolidated financial statementdude, but are not limited to, reserves
losses and loss adjustment expenses; reinsuratmeerables, including the reinsurance recoveraddles/ance for doubtful accounts; estimi
of written and earned premiums; reinsurance prenrgrivable; fair value of investments and assessofepotential impairment; valuation
goodwill and intangibles and our deferred tax assdtiation allowance. Actual results could diffeorh those estimates. Certain finan
information that normally is included in annualdircial statements, including certain financialestant footnotes, prepared in accordance
GAAP, is not required for interim reporting purpssend has been condensed or omitted. These statesieuld be read in conjunction v
the consolidated financial statements and notegtihéncluded in our Annual Report on Form R{er the year ended December 31, 2
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiofrebruary 27, 2015.

The interim financial information as of, and foetthree and six months ended, June 30, 2015 ardi2@bhaudited. However, in the opinior
management, the interim information includes ajustinents, consisting of normal recurring accruaés;essary for a fair presentation of
results presented for the interim periods. The atpey results for the interim periods are not neagly indicative of the results to be expe:
for the full year. All significant intercompany ammats have been eliminated in consolidation. Cerimounts in prior yearsfinancia
statements have been reclassified to conform toulrent presentation.

10% Stock Dividend

On February 17, 2015, our Board of Directors declaa 10% stock dividend, payable on March 16, 2@iShareholders of record at the c
of business on March 2, 2015. As a result of tieekstlividend, 2,554,506 additional shares wereeidsCash was paid in lieu of fractio
shares of our common shares. All references toeshad per share amounts in this document and dethselosures have been adjuste
reflect the stock dividend for all periods presente

2. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncemen

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standargdldte (“ASU”) 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts wthstomers” Topic 606). Th
ASU is a comprehensive new revenue recognition iiribdé requires a company to recognize revenuepictithe transfer of goods or servi
to a customer at an amount that reflects the cergsiin it expects to receive in exchange for thyusmls or services. The ASU provides a five
step analysis of transactions to determine whentavd revenue is recognized and requires additidisdlosures sufficient to describe
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenne eash flows for these transactions. This ASUffiecéve for annual reporting peric
beginning after December 15, 2016 and early adopfiaot permitted. Accordingly, we will adopt thASU on January 1, 2017. On April
2015 the FASB voted to propose to defer ASU 20%4for one year, which if accepted, would delay adoption date until January
2018. Companies may use either a “full retrospettiadoption, meaning the update is applied topaifiods presented, or anbtdifiec
retrospective”adoption, meaning the update is applied only tontlost current period presented in the financidlestents. While insuran
contracts are excluded from this ASU, fee incomatee to our brokerage operations and managemetheothirdparty capital for ot
underwriting Syndicate at Lloyd'will be subject to this updated guidance. Wecareently evaluating what impact this ASU will hage ou
financial results and disclosures and which adopti@thod to apply.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, $otidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consdiata Analysis." ASU 20192
changes the analysis that a reporting entity mestopm to determine whether entities should be clidated if they are deemed varia
interest entities. It is effective for annual refpuy periods, and interim periods within those gedreginning after December 15, 2015. E
adoption is permitted, including adoption in areiith period. We are currently in the process ofating the impact of the adoption of A
2015-02 on our consolidated financial statements

In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-09, “Insueii€opic 944), Disclosures about Short-Duration t€amis.” ASU 201339 require
additional disclosures about shdrration contracts for products in effect for tyglig a year or less. The disclosures will focustiom liability
for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expense$) 2815-09 is effective for annual periods beginraifigr
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December 15, 2015 and i nterim periods within ahpegods beginning after December 15, 20A0& are currently in the process of evalue
the impact of the adoption of ASU 2015-0 9 on camsolidated financial statements .

3. Investments
Composition of Invested Assets

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gnessalized losses and fair value of investments \asr®llows:

June 30, 2015

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(in millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
Fixed maturities
USD denominatec
U.S. Government $ 183¢ $ 12 $ 01 $ 185.C
Non-U.S. Government 84.7 0.4 0.7 84.4
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 477.1 17.3 1.6 492.¢
Credi+Financial 461.7 9.7 1.8 469.€
Credi-Industrial 430.4 7.5 2.4 435.5
Credit-Utility 143.¢ 2.9 2.4 144.:
Structured securitie!
CMO/MBS-agencyd) 143.C 6.4 0.4 149.C
CMO/MBS-non agenc! 12.1 0.8 — 12.9
CMBS @ 161.€ 1.1 0.7 162.2
ABS @) 245.4 1.2 0.7 245.¢C
Foreign denominate:
Governmentt 175.€ 1.9 13.7 164.1
Credit 239.€ 3.5 24.9 218.2
Total fixed maturities 2,759.k 53.9 49.4 2,764.(
Equity securitie: 3324 164.5 10.3 486.€
Other investment 501.1 10.3 25 508.¢
Shor-term investment 322.7 — — 322.7
Total investment $ 3,915.7 $ 2287 $ 622 $ 4,082.2

@ Collateralized mortgage obligations/mortg-backed securities CMO/MBS”).
@ Commercial mortgac-backed securities CMBS”").
®  Asse-backed securitie¢ ABS”).




December 31, 2014

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(in millions) Cost Gains Losses Value
Fixed maturities
USD denominatec
U.S. Government $ 184.C $ 13 $ 03 $ 185.C
Nor-U.S. Government 79.9 0.6 0.6 79.9
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 468.1 22.9 0.3 490.7
Credi-Financial 508.1 12.3 2.3 518.1
Credi-Industrial 493.7 9.4 35 499.¢€
Credi-Utility 142.7 3.2 3.9 142.C
Structured securitie:
CMO/MBS-agencyd) 168.C 8.0 0.7 175.5
CMO/MBS-non agenc! 13.2 0.8 — 14.C
CMBS @) 178.€ 1.6 0.2 180.C
ABS @) 221.4 0.6 1.0 221.C
Foreign denominate:
Government: 148.4 1.2 9.4 140.z
Credit 211.1 2.7 18.9 194.¢
Total fixed maturities 2,817.2 64.6 41.1 2,840.7
Equity securitie: 307.3 184.1 5.1 486.2
Other investment 488.¢ 7.5 1.3 495.1
Shor-term investment 275.€ — — 275.€
Total investment $ 3,889.: $ 256.z2 $ 475 $ 4,097.¢

@ Collateralized mortgage obligations/mortg-backed securitie CMO/MBS”).
@ Commercial mortga¢-backed securities* CMBS”).
®  Asse-backed securities*ABS").

Included in “Total investmentsh our Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, @dd®ecember 31, 2014 is $78.3 million and $75Ikom,
respectively, of assets managed on behalf of Huetcapital providers, who are thpdsty participants that provide underwriting calpitaoul
Syndicate 1200 segment.

Contractual Maturity

The amortized cost and fair values of fixed mayurivestments as of June 30, 2015, by contractaalirity, were as follows:

Amortized Fair

(in millions) Cost Value
Due in one year or le: $ 2527 $ 245.¢
Due after one year through five ye. 1,207.¢ 1,208.7
Due after five years through ten ye 555.C 557.2
Thereaftel 181.t 182.1
Structured securitie 562.4 570.1

Total $ 2,759.5 $ 2,764.(

The expected maturities may differ from the contratmaturities because debtors may have the tagtall or prepay obligations.
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Other | nvested Assets

Details regarding the carrying value and unfundedestment commitments of the other invested agsatfolio as of June 30, 2015 ¢
December 31, 2014 were as follows:

June 30, 2015

Unfunded
(in millions) Carrying Value Commitments
Investment Type
Hedge fund: $ 1456 $ —
Private equity 141.¢ 74.5
Long only funds 202.7 —
Other investment 18.8 —
Total other invested assets $ 508.¢ $ 74.5
December 31, 2014

Unfunded
(in millions) Carrying Value Commitments
Investment Type
Hedge fund: $ 1532 $ —
Private equity 123.€ 72.9
Long only funds 200.7 —
Other investment 17.6 —
Total other invested assets $ 4951 $ 72.9

The following describes each investment type:
« Hedge funds:Hedge funds include equity long/short, multi-stggteredit, relative value credit and distressechéeesdit funds.

« Private equity: Private equity includes buyout funds, real assetistructure funds, credit special situations fynaezzanin
lending funds and direct investments and strategitcontrolling minority investments in private compasithat are principal
accounted for using the equity method of accoun

« Long only funds: These funds include a loraply fund that invests in high yield fixed incomecsarities and funds that primai
invest in investmer-grade corporate and sovereign fixed income seest!

» Other investments: Other investments include assets on deposit witiows regulatory authorities to support Syndicag®C
segmens insurance and reinsurance operations and fomighange currency forward contracts to manage exposn losse
related to global catastrophic events, our Canadiidlar investment portfolio and certain Euro deiveated investment:
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Unrealized Losses and Other-than-temporary | mpairments

An aging of unrealized losses on our investmenfxed maturities, equity securities, other investits and shottierm investments is presen
below:

June 30, 201t Less Than One Yeal One Year or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(in millions) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Fixed maturities
USD denominatec

U.S. Government® $ 178 $ 01 $ 41 % —  $ 219 $ 0.1
Non-U.S. Government 27.6 0.6 2.7 0.1 30.3 0.7
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions 80.6 1.2 9.0 0.4 89.6 1.6
Credi-Financial 203.C 1.7 10.6 0.1 213.€ 1.8
Credi-Industrial 167.€ 1.9 17.8 0.5 185.€ 2.4
Credi-Utility 63.8 2.3 1.5 0.1 65.3 2.4
Structured securitie:
CMO/MBS-agency 11.1 0.1 7.9 0.3 19.0 0.4
CMBS @) 40.2 0.7 3.6 — 43.8 0.7
ABS 88.0 0.4 10.5 0.3 98.5 0.7
Foreign denominatet
Governmentt 127.¢ 13.7 — — 127.€ 13.7
Credit® 198.€ 24.8 0.9 — 199.5 24.9
Total fixed maturities 1,026.¢ 47.€ 68.6 1.8 1,095.( 494
Equity securitie: 90.1 10.3 — — 90.1 10.3
Other investment (2.2) 2.5 — — (2.2) 2.5
Shor-term investment®) 17.8 — — — 17.8 —
Total $ 1,1321  $ 60.4 $ 68.6 $ 1.8 $ 1,200.7 $ 62.2

@ Unrealized losses less than one year are lesssthamillion.
@ Unrealized losses one year or greater are lessidmillion.

December 31, 2014 Less Than One Year One Year or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(in millions) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Fixed maturities
USD denominatec

U.S. Government $ 550 $ 02 $ 157 $ 01 $ 707 $ 0.3
Non-U.S. Government 36.5 0.4 5.2 0.2 41.7 0.6
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions 104 0.1 16.6 0.2 27.0 0.3
Credi-Financial 195.7 2.2 11.1 0.1 206.€ 2.3
Credi-Industrial 240.¢ 3.3 12.2 0.2 253.C 35
Credi-Utility 63.1 3.8 1.9 0.1 65.0 3.9
Structured securitie!
CMO/MBS-agency 10.1 0.1 19.2 0.6 29.3 0.7
CMBS 49.3 0.1 6.0 0.1 55.3 0.2
ABS 129.2 0.7 8.1 0.3 137.Z 1.0
Foreign denominatet
Government: 123.7 9.3 11.2 0.1 134.¢€ 9.4
Credit 190.€ 18.7 0.9 0.2 191.7 18.9
Total fixed maturities 1,104.¢ 38.9 108.1 2.2 1,212.7 41.1
Equity securities 53.6 5.1 — — 53.6 5.1
Other investment (0.9 1.3 — — (0.9) 1.3
Shor-term investment — — — — — —
Total $ 1,157.:  $ 453 $ 108.1 $ 22 $ 1,265.. $ 47.5
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We regularly evaluate our investments for othenttemporary impairment. For fixemhaturity securities, the evaluation for a credgsla:
generally based on the present value of expect&u ftawvs of the security as compared to the amexitizook value. For structured securi
frequency and severity of loss inputs are usedadjegting future cash flows of the securities. Losgfrency is measured as the credit de
rate, which includes such factors as loawdbse ratios and credit scores of borrowers. Faoitggecurities and other investments, the lend
time and the am ount of decline in fair value & principal factors in determining other-than-temgpy impairment. We also recognize othel
than-temporary losses on fixed maturity securities$ we intend to sell.

We hold a total of 6,517 securities, of which 2,38&e in an unrealized loss position for less thaa year and 104 were in an unrealized
position for a period one year or greater as oM 2015. Unrealized losses greater than twelweting on fixed maturities were the resu
a number of factors, including increased credieags, foreign currency fluctuations and higher raykelds relative to the date the secur
were purchased, and for structured securitieshbyperformance of the underlying collateral, as.welconsidering whether an investmer
other-thentemporarily impaired or not, we also considered tlva do not intend to sell the investments ands itmlikely that we will b
required to sell the investments before recovertheir amortized cost bases, which may be maturitgituations where we did not recogtr
other-than-temporary losses on investments in quitg portfolio, we have evaluated the néamm prospects of the investment in relation tc
severity and duration of the impairment and bagethat evaluation, have the ability and intent étdhthese investments until a recovery of
cost basis. We do not consider these investmertits tiher-than-temporarily impaired at June 305201

We recognized other-thaemporary losses on our fixed maturities portf@fcb0.5 million and $0.9 million for the three asik months ende
June 30, 2015, respectively. We recognized othentbmporary losses on our fixed maturities portfafdbl.2 million for both the three a
six months ended June 30, 2014. We recognized-tthetemporary losses on our equity portfolio of $0.9lion and $1.0 million for th
three and six months ended June 30, 2015, respbctiWe recognized other-thaemporary losses on our equity portfolio of $0.2lion for
both the three and six months ended June 30, 2014.

Realized Gains and L osses

The following table presents our gross realize@ggtment gains (losses) and other:

For the Six Months Ended June

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 30,
(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Realized gain
Fixed maturities $ 35 % 6.1 $ 76 $ 10.7
Equity securitie: 9.0 8.9 12.8 154
Other investment 9.4 10.2 30.3 22.9
Shor-term investment 1.1 0.1 1.1 0.1
Gain on sale of real estate holdings and ¢ 0.1 — 0.4 —
Gross realized investment ga 23.1 25.3 52.2 49.1
Realized losse
Fixed maturities (5.3 (4.2 (9.0) (7.6
Equity securitie: (0.9) — (1.2) (0.1
Other investment (10.9 (1.2 (17.5) (6.1)
Shor-term investment (0.3 (0.1) (1.4) (0.3
Other asset — — — (4.0
Other-than-temporary impairment losses on fixed
maturities (0.5) (1.2 (0.9) 1.2
Other-than-temporary impairment losses on equity
securities (0.9) (0.2) (1.0) (0.2
Gross realized investment and other lot (17.8) (6.8) (30.9 (19.5)
Net realized investment and other ge $ 53 §$ 185 $ 213 $ 29.6

The cost of securities sold is based on the sjpadéintification method.
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Realized gains (losses) and changes in unrealippteaation (depreciation) relateto fixed maturity and equity security investmeats
summarized as follows:

Real Estate

Fixed Equity Other Holdings Tax
(in millions) Maturities Maturities Investments  Short Term and Other Effects Total
Three Months Ended June 30, 2015
Realized before impairmer $ 1.8 $ 86 $ 1.00 $ 08 % 01 $ 22 $ 4.5
Realizec- impairments (0.5) (0.9) — — — 0.5 (0.9)
Change in unrealize (6.0) (14.0) — 0.2 — 10.3 (9.5)
Three Months Ended June 30, 2014
Realized before impairmer $ 20 $ 89 % 9.0 $ — % — 3 53 $ 14.€
Realizec- impairments (1.2) (0.2 — — — 0.4 (1.0
Change in unrealize 134 18.9 1.4 — — (8.89) 24.9
Six Months Ended June 30, 2015
Realized before impairmer $ 14 $ 117 $ 128 $ 03 % 04 $ 84 $ 148
Realizec- impairments (0.9 (2.0 — — — 0.2 a.7)
Change in unrealize (18.3) (24.9) 1.6 — — 13.2 (28.4)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2014
Realized before impairmer $ 31 $ 153 $ 168 $ 02 $ (4.0 $ B89 $ 221
Realizec- impairments (1.2 (0.2 — — — 0.5 (0.9
Change in unrealize 22.0 15.5 1.2 — — (12.5) 26.2

We enter into foreign currency exchange forwardtiemts to manage currency exposure on losses deiateertain global catastrophe eve
These currency forward contracts are carried atvalue in our Consolidated Balance Sheets in “Othgestments.”The realized ar
unrealized gains and losses on these contractmelueled in “Net realized investment and other g&im our Consolidated Statements
Income. The notional amount of these currency fodwantracts was $7.7 million and $43.0 millionJahe 30, 2015 and 2014, respectiy
The fair value of these currency forward contraeas a loss of $0.8 million and a gain of $0.6 miiliat June 30, 2015 and 2014, respecti
For the three and six months ended June 30, 20&5ewognized $0.2 million and $0.5 million in reafil gains and $0.8 million and $
million in realized losses, respectively, from thesirrency forward contracts. For the three andreirths ended June 30, 2014, we recog|
$1.2 million and $3.6 million in realized gains a$%@.3 million and $1.6 million in realized lossesspectively, from these currency forw
contracts.

In the third quarter of 2014, we entered into fgrecurrency exchange forward contracts to managermty exposure on our Canadian d¢
(“CAD”) investment portfolio. The currency forwardontracts are carried at fair value in our Constéd Balance Sheets irOthe
investments.” The realized and unrealized gains lasdes are included in “Net realized investmerd ather gains”in our Consolidate
Statements of Income. The notional amount of theeowy forward contracts was CAD 142.7 million (U$D14.8 million) as of June :
2015. The fair value of the currency forward cociisavas a gain of $3.0 million as of June 30, 2¢4%. the three and six months ended
30, 2015, we recognized $3.6 million and $11.1iomllin realized gains and $2.8 million and $4.8lionil in realized losses, respectively, fr
the CAD currency forward contracts.

In the second quarter of 2015, we entered intoidareurrency exchange forward contracts to minimegative impacts to our investm
portfolio returns. These currency forward contsaate carried at fair value in our ConsolidatedaBeé Sheets in “Other investment$he
realized and unrealized gains and losses are iedlid “Net realized investment and other gaimsbur Consolidated Statements of Inca
The notional amount of the current forward contacas $21.1 million at June 30, 2015. The fair vadfighe currency forward contracts we
loss of $0.2 million at June 30, 2015. For bothttivee and six months ended June 30, 2015, we mexaxy$0.4 million in realized gains ¢
$1.0 million in realized losses from these currefasyvard contracts. We also enter into foreign enay exchange forward contracts to mau
currency exposure on certain Euro denominated imeargts. The currency forward contracts are caraedair value in our Consolidat
Balance Sheets in “Other investments.” The realasd unrealized gains and losses are included ét féhlized investment and other gaiirs”
our Consolidated Statements of Income. The fawevalf the currency forward contracts was a losg10® million and $0.2 million as of Ju
30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. For the three sindnonths ended June 30, 2015, we recognized i$Rlibn in realized losses and $
million in realized gains, respectively, from therency forward contracts. For the three and sintins ended June 30, 2014, we recogt
$0.5 million and $0.6 million in realized gains a@d.5 million and $0.6 million in realized lossesspectively, from these currency forw
contracts.
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Regulatory Deposits, Pledged Securities and L etters of Credit

At June 30, 2015, the amortized cost and fair valuavestments on deposit with U.S., Canadian\aribus agencies for regulatory purpc
were $186.2 million and $191.6 million, respectiveht December 31, 2014, the amortized cost andviglue of investments on deposit v
U.S., Canadian and various agencies for regulggorgoses were $186.6 million and $194.2 milliorspextively.

At June 30, 2015, investments with an amortized 06$41.6 million and fair value of $41.8 milliomere pledged as collateral in suppoi
irrevocable letters of credit (“LOCs’lh the amount of $32.1 million issued under thenterf certain reinsurance agreements in respt
reported loss and loss expense reserves. At DeceStib2014, investments with an amortized cost%8.8 million and fair value of $5&
million were pledged as collateral in support eéwocable LOCs in the amount of $43.6 million issweder the terms of certain reinsure
agreements in respect of reported loss and lossnegjreserves.

Our Corporate member’s capital supporting our Llgydusiness was $213.0 million and $217.9 milliodwie 30, 2015 and December
2014, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddiban asset or paid to transfer a liability incaderly transaction between market participar
the measurement date. Fair value measurement ass$hatehe transaction to sell the asset or tramiséeliability occurs in the principal marl
for the asset or liability, or in the absence gfrimcipal market, the most advantageous marketkbtgrarticipants are buyers and sellers ir
principal (or most advantageous) market that adependent, knowledgeable, able to transact foasset or liability and willing to transfer 1
asset or liability.

Valuation techniques consistent with the marketrapagh, income approach and/or cost approach arktasaeasure fair value. The input:
these valuation techniques are categorized ingettavels.

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) tivaenarkets for identical assets or liabilitiegtttan be accessed at the repo
date. We define actively traded as a security flaattraded in the past seven days. We receive wote ger instrument for Leve
inputs.

e Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prinekided within Level 1 that are observable for #sset or liability, either direct
or indirectly. We receive one quote per instrunfentevel 2 inputs

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. Unobseevaiputs reflect our own judgments about the assiomg market participar
would use in pricing the asset or liability basediloe best information available in the circumstmn

We receive fair value prices from thiphty pricing services and our outside investmeanagers. These prices are determined
observable market information such as dealer quatasket spreads, cash flows, yield curves, liaglitrg levels, trade execution data, me
consensus prepayment speeds, credit informatiorthendecuritys terms and conditions, among other things. We heviewed the process
used by the thirgharty providers for pricing the securities, anddnaetermined that these processes result in faiesaonsistent with GAA
requirements. In addition, we review these pricgsdéasonableness, and have not adjusted any peiceived from the thirgharty providers ¢
of June 30, 2015. A description of the valuatiazhtéques we use to measure assets at fair vahgef@lows:

Fixed Maturities (Availabl-for-Sale) Levels 1 and 2:

e United States Treasury securities are typicallyedlusing Level 1 inputs. For these securitiespbtain fair value measureme
from thirc-party pricing services using quoted prices (unadfljsin active markets at the reporting d:

e United States Government agencies, bo@: Government securities, obligations of states olitical subdivisions, credit securit
and foreign denominated securities are reporteéniatvalue using Level 2 inputs. For these se@sijtiwe obtain fair val
measurements from thinglarty pricing services. Observable data may inclleer quotes, market spreads, yield curves taaing
levels, trade execution data, credit informatiod Hre securit's terms and conditions, among other thi

e CMO/MBS agency, CMO/MBS noagency, CMBS and ABS securities are reported atvigiie using Level 2 inputs. For th
securities, we obtain fair value measurements filoind-party pricing services. Observable data may incldelaler quotes, mar}
spreads, cash flows, yield curves, live tradinglsvtrade execution data, market consensus prepayspeeds, credit informati
and the securi’s terms and conditions, among other thit
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Equity Securities Level (Equity securities are principally reported at featue using Level 1 inputs. For thesecurities, we obtain fair val
measurements from a third-party pricing servicagisjuoted prices (unadjusted) in active marketBeateporting date.

Equity Securities Level We own certain equity securities that are repoatefdir value using Level 3 inputs. The valuatienttniques for the
securities include the following:

e Fair value measurements are obtained from th@hatAssociation of Insurance Commissionedscurity Valuation Office at tl
reporting date

e Fair value measurements for an investment in aityefiuind obtained by applying final prices providbg the administrator of tl
fund, which is based upon certain estimates anshgstsons.

Other Investments Level BEoreign regulatory deposits are assets held it imysirisdictions where there is a legal and raguty requiremel
to maintain funds locally in order to protect pgholders. Lloyds is the appointed investment manager for the fufidese assets are inves
in shortterm government securities, agency securities angbcate bonds and are valued using Level 2 inpased upon values obtained fi
Lloyd’'s. Foreign currency future contracts are valuedoby counterparty using market driven foreign cucsemxchange rates and
considered Level 2 investments.

Short-term Investment8hort-term investments are principally reportedaat value using Level 1 inputs, with the exceptiohshortterr
corporate bonds reported at fair value using Levéhputs as described in the fixed maturities sectibove. Values for the investme
categorized as Level 1 are obtained from varioeftial institutions as of the reporting date.

Transfers Between Level 1 and Level 2 Securilibere were no transfers between Level 1 and LesgelcRrities during the three months er
June 30, 2015.

Based on an analysis of the inputs, our financaéts measured at fair value on a recurring basis been categorized as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Usin
(in millions) June 30, 201t Level 1@ Level 2(b) Level 39
Fixed maturities
USD denominatec

U.S. Government $ 185.C $ 104 $ 80.2 % —
Non-U.S. Government 84.4 — 84.4 —
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 492.¢ — 492.¢ —
Credi+Financial 469.€ — 469.€ —
Credi-Industrial 435t — 435.k —
Credi-Utility 1442 — 1442 —

Structured securitie:
CMO/MBS-agency 149.C — 149.C —
CMO/MBS-non agenc! 12.9 — 12.9 —
CMBS 162.Z — 162.Z —
ABS 245.¢ — 245.¢ —

Foreign denominatet

Governmentt 164.1 — 164.1 —
Credit 218.2 — 218.2 —
Total fixed maturities 2,764.( 104.¢ 2,659.2 —
Equity securitie: 486.€ 485.¢ — 0.8
Other investment 88.5 — 88.5 —
Shor-term investment 322.7 320.€ 1.8 —
$ 3,661.6 $ 911 $ 2,749 $ 0.8

@ Quoted prices in active markets for identical &
®  Significant other observable inpt
©  Significant unobservable inpu
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Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Usin

December 31,
(in millions) 2014 Level 1@ Level 2(b) Level 3(¢)

Fixed maturities
USD denominatec

U.S. Government $ 185.C $ 99.2 $ 85.8 $ —
Nor-U.S. Government 79.9 — 79.9 —
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 490.7 — 490.7 —
Credi-Financial 518.1 — 518.1 —
Credi-Industrial 499.€ — 499.¢€ —
Credi-Utility 142.C — 142.C —

Structured securitie!
CMO/MBS-agency 175.C — 175.2 —
CMO/MBS-non agenc! 14.0 — 14.0 —
CMBS 180.C — 180.C —
ABS 221.C — 221.C —

Foreign denominate:

Government: 140.z — 140.z —
Credit 194.¢ — 194.¢ —
Total fixed maturities 2,840.7 99.2 2,741k —
Equity securitie: 486.2 485.4 — 0.9
Other investment 97.3 — 97.3 —
Shor-term investment 275.€ 273.C 1.9 —
$ 3,700.1 $ 858.L $ 2,840.7 $ 0.9

@ Quoted prices in active markets for identical &
®  Significant other observable inpt
©  Significant unobservable inpu

The fair value measurements in the tables aboveoti@qual “Total investmentsin our Consolidated Balance Sheets as they exdedair
other investments that are accounted for undeedjéy-method of accounting.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakmor the investments categorized as Level 3afell@ws:

Fair Value Measurements Using Observable Inputs (Leel 3)

Equity
(in millions) Securities Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 09 $ 0.9
Transfers into Level — —
Transfers out of Level — —
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealizt

Included in net income (los — —
Included in other comprehensive income (I — —
Purchases, issuances, sales, and settlel
Purchase — —
Issuance: — —
Sales (0.2) (0.2)
Settlement: —
Ending balance, June 30, 2C $ 08 $ 0.8

Amount of total gains or losses for the year ineldith net income (loss)
attributable to the change in unrealized gamssses relating to assets
still held at June 30, 20: $ —  $ =
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Equity Other
(in millions) Securities Assets Total

Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 13 $ 26 $ 3.9
Transfers into Level — _ —
Transfers out of Level — — _
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealiz¢

Included in net income (los — — —

Included in other comprehensive income (I 0.1 — 0.1
Purchases, issuances, sales, and settlel

Purchase — — —

Issuance: — — —

Sales (0.5) — (0.5)

Settlement: — (2.6) (2.6)

Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 09 $ — 8 0.9

Amount of total gains or losses for the year ineldith net income (loss)
attributable to the change in unrealized gamssses relating to assets
still held at December 31, 20 $ — 3 — 3 —

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we dichae¢ any financial assets or financial liabilitresasured at fair value on a nonrecut
basis or any financial liabilities on a recurrinasks.

4. Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expess

The following table provides a reconciliation ofeeves for losses and loss adjustment expense£()LA

For the Six Months Ended June 30
(in millions) 2015 2014
Net reserves beginning of the y« 2,137.1 $ 2,107.¢
Add:
Losses and LAE incurred during current calendar
year, net of reinsuranc

Current accident ye: 383.C 390.€
Prior accident yeai (8.7) (23.3)
Losses and LAE incurred during calendar year, net
of reinsuranc 374.5 367.€
Deduct:

Losses and LAE payments made during current
calendar year, net of reinsuran

Current accident ye: 52.8 71.€
Prior accident yeat 313.F 290.5
Losses and LAE payments made during current
calendar year, net of reinsuran 366.1 361.€
Change in participation intere(® 1.2 24.7
Foreign exchange adjustme! (14.5) 4.4
Net reserve- end of perioc 2,129.¢ 2,142.¢
Add:
Reinsurance recoverables on unpaid losses and LAE,
end of perioc 948.€ 925.5
Gross reserve- end of perioc 3,078.2 $ 3,067.¢

@ Amount represents (decreases) increases in resgureg® change in syndicate participat

Reserves for losses and LAE represent the estinadiednnity cost and related adjustment expensesssacy to investigate and settle cla
Such estimates are based upon individual case assnfor reported claims, estimates from cedingpaomes for reinsurance assumed
actuarial estimates for losses that have beenrieduiout not yet reported to the insurer. Any chaingarobable ultimate liabilities is reflectec
current operating results.
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Impacting losses and LAE fo r the six months endede 30 , 2015 was $ 8.7 million in favorable piyears’loss reserve developm
comprised of the following: $ 15.0 million of neaviorable development in the Excess and SurplussLsggment primarilghe result ¢
favorable development in the general and produakslity lines and commercial automobigartially offset by unfavorable developmen
property lines ; $ 11.6 million of net unfavorabdevelopment in the Commercial Specialty segmentnaily driven by unfavorabl
development in general liability and workers congagion due to increases in claim severity , padytiafifset by favorable development awtc
liability and short tail lines ; $ 3.7 million ofet favorable development in the International Sialscsegmentprimarily driven by favorabl
development in Argo Re and long-tail lines, palyiaffset by unfavorable development in the Bramilit ; $ 2.5 million of netfavorable
development in the Syndicate 1200 segment primdrilyen by f avorable development in property amatine & energy, partially offset by
unfavorable development in various liability classeand $ 0.9 million of un favorable developmenthe Runeff Lines segment primari
caused by unfavorable development in workers cosgtdan linesand assumed asbestos and environmental liabiffisgtdn part by favorab
development in run-off reinsurance claims.

Impacting losses and LAE for the six months endedeJ30, 2014 was $23.3 million in favorable pri@ass’ loss reserve developm
comprised of the following: $21.7 million of netfarable development in the Excess and Surplus LSegment primarily caused by favore
development in the general and products liabilined, partially offset by unfavorable developmentcommercial automobile and prope
lines; $4.9 million of net unfavorable developmémtthe Commercial Specialty segment, primarily drivby unfavorable development
general liability due to increases in claim seyerds well as unfavorable development in auto liigbpartially offset by favorable developm:
in workers compensation and shtait lines; $0.4 million of net unfavorable devefoent in the International Specialty segment priig
driven by our Brazil unit; $15.2 million of net farable development in the Syndicate 1200 segmémiapity driven by favorable developm
in various property classes, as well as favoraldeetbpment in professional indemnity and aerospaeetially offset by unfavorab
development in general liability; and $8.3 milliofi unfavorable development in the Rafi-Lines segment primarily caused by unfavor
development in workers compensation lines driverinleyeasing medical costs on older claims, as alinfavorable development in asbe
liability on assumed business.

In the opinion of management, our reserves reptaberbest estimate of our ultimate liabilitiesséd on currently known facts, current |
current technology and assumptions considered meh&® where facts are not known. Due to the siggnifi uncertainties and rela
management judgments, there can be no assurandattira loss development, favorable or unfavoralié not occur.

5. Debt
Revolving Credit Facility

On March 7, 2014, each of Argo Group, Argo Group, Us., Argo International Holdings Limited and ArdJnderwriting Agency Limite
(the “Borrowers”) entered into a $175 million credgreement (“Credit Agreementlith JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administratiyens
The Credit Agreement provides for a $175.0 milli@volving credit facility with a maturity date of &ich 7, 2018 unless extendec
accordance with the terms of the Credit AgreemBotrowings under the Credit Agreement may be usedgéneral corporate purpos
including working capital and permitted acquisispand each of the Borrowers has agreed to bdyj@nt severally liable for the obligatic
of the other Borrowers under the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement contains customary eventsefdudt. If an event of default occurs and is caouitig, the Borrowers might be requi
immediately to repay all amounts outstanding urttierCredit Agreement. Lenders holding at least ority of the loans and commitme
under the Credit Agreement may elect to acceldtsematurity of the loans and/or terminate the caments under the Credit Agreem
upon the occurrence and during the continuaticanoévent of default.

Included in the Credit Agreement is a provisiont thifows up to $17.5 million of the revolving credécility to be used for LOCs, subject
availability. As of June 30, 2015 and DecemberZ114, there were no borrowings outstanding and 80liion in LOCs against the Cre
Facility.

Junior Subordinated Debentur

On July 16, 2014, Argo Group US, Inc. purchaseddhtstanding PXRE Capital Trust V $20,000,000 JuSabordinated Debt Securit
(“Capital Trust V") at a discount equal to 90.0% of the principal amglums accrued and unpaid interest through the afgpeirchase for a tot
price of $18.2 million, resulting in the recognitiof a $2.0 million pre-tax realized gain. In aatzmce with ASC Topic 405, “Liabilitiesyve
have eliminated the recognized gain, outstandity, @ssociated interest, and intercompany balamtated to the purchase of the Capital T
V since the purchase by Argo Group US, Inc., ireees, reduced our outstanding debt related to uhsr Subordinated Debentures.
Capital Trust V continued to accrue interest uhtitas redeemed on April 29, 2015.
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6. Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Insimments

Cash.The carrying amount approximates fair value.
Investment securities and st-term investmentsSee Note 3, “Investments,” for additional infotioa.

Premiums receivable and reinsurance recoverablepaid lossesThe carrying value of current receivables approx@sdair value. At Jur
30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the carrying valfigsemiums receivable over 90 days were $13.6anibnd $12.4 million, respective
Included in “Reinsurance recoverablés’our Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 20d®ecember 31, 2014, are amounts that ar
from trade capital providers associated with therapons of ArgoGlobal Syndicate 1200. Upon settietnthe receivable is offset against
liability also reflected in our accompanying Coridated Balance Sheets. At June 30, 2015 and Dec¢e3tb2014, the payable was in ex
of the receivable. Of our reinsurance recoverablepaid losses, excluding amounts attributable rgo&lobal Syndicate 120€'trade capit:
providers, at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2B&4carrying values over 90 days were $11.3 milaoa $9.9 million, respectively. C
methodology for establishing our allowances for lstwl accounts includes specifically identifyingl gdotential uncollectible balanc
regardless of aging. At June 30, 2015 and DeceBihe?014, the allowance for doubtful accounts famgums receivable was $3.8 mill
and $5.2 million, respectively, and the allowanee doubtful accounts for reinsurance recoverabtepaid losses was $2.5 million and §
million, respectively. Premiums receivable overd#ys were secured by collateral in the amount 3 &illion and $0.3 million at June :
2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. Reinsaragcoverables on paid losses over 90 days wetgeskeby collateral in the amount
$0.6 million and $0.4 at June 30, 2015 and Decer@bep014, respectively.

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the fdirevaf our Junior subordinated debentures, Semigecured fixed rate notes and O
indebtedness was estimated using appropriate madiees or quoted prices from external sourcesdas current market conditions.

A summary of our financial instruments whose cangyalue did not equal fair value is shown below:

June 30, 201¢ December 31, 201

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

(in millions) Amount Value Amount Value
Junior subordinated debentul $ 1727 $ 156.€ $ 1727 $ 155.5
Senior unsecured fixed rate no 143.¢ 145.C 143.€ 132.c

Other indebtednes

Floating rate loan stoc 56.1 50.8 61.3 55.2
Note payable 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.6
$ 373.2 % 353.C $ 378t $ 343.€

7. Shareholders Equity

On August 4, 2015, our Board of Directors declaeqiarterly cash dividend in the amount of $0.2@ach share of common stock
outstanding.. The dividend will be paid on Septenilie 2015, to shareholders of record on Septerhb2015.

On February 17, 2015, our Board of Directors declaa 10% stock dividend, payable on March 16, 2@iShareholders of record at the c
of business on March 2, 2015. As a result of tieekstlividend, 2,554,506 additional shares wereeidsCash was paid in lieu of fractio
shares of our common shares. All references toeshad per share amounts in this document and detliselosures have been adjuste
reflect the stock dividend for all periods presente

On May 5, 2015, our Board of Directors declarediarterly cash dividend in the amount of $0.20 orheshare of common stock outstand
On June 15, 2015, we paid $5.6 million to our shalders of record on June 1, 2015.

On May 5, 2014, our Board of Directors declareduarterly cash dividend in the amount of $0.16 otheshare of common stock outstand
on a post-stock dividend basis. On June 16, 20&4aid $4.7 million to our shareholders of recandlane 2, 2014.

On November 5, 2013, our Board of Directors autteatithe repurchase of up to $150.0 million of ommmon shares 2013 Repurcha
Authorization”). The 2013 Repurchase Authorization supersedesalptbvious Repurchase Authorizations. As of June28@5, availabilit
under the 2013 Repurchase Authorization for futepurchases of our common shares was $67.9 million.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 20d5epurchased a total of 136,042 common shared @096, respectively, for $6.8 milli
and $24.9 million, respectively.
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For the three and six months ended June 30 , 204 5e purchased 24,700 common shares and 221,56v @pen market , respectivelgr $
1.3 million and $11.2 million, respectiv ely . 2015, we repurchased shares under Securities Eyehraat of 1934 Rule 10b%-trading plan

as follows:
Date 2015 Number of Average Price Repurchase
Trading Plan Purchase Shares of Shares Total Cost Authorization
Initiated Period Repurchased Repurchased (in millions) Year
12/15/2014 01/05/201-02/12/201¢ 117,48: $ 535 $ 6.3 2013
03/16/201& 03/18/201-05/06/201¢ 150,05 $ 495 % 7.4 2013

8. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (L0sS)

A summary of changes in accumulated other compshernncome (loss), net of taxes (where applicablexomponent for the six mon

ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 is presented below:

Foreign
Currency Unrealized
Translation Holding Gains Defined Benefit
(in millions) Adjustments on Securities Pension Plans Total
Balance, January 1, 2015 $ (15.6) $ 130.7 $ (7.00 $ 108.1
Other comprehensive loss before
reclassification (2.6) (24.3) — (26.9)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive o — (4.1) — (4.1)
Net currer-period other comprehensive Ic (2.6) (28.9) — (31.0
Balance at June 30, 2015 $ (18.2) $ 102.8 3 (7.00 $ 77.1
Foreign
Currency Unrealized
Translation Holding Gains Defined Benefit
(in millions) Adjustments on Securities Pension Plans Total
Balance, January 1, 2014 $ (115 $ 163.¢ $ 4.6) $ 147.¢
Other comprehensive income before
reclassification 0.4 39.3 — 39.7
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive incon — (13.7) — (13.2)
Net current-period other comprehensive
income 0.4 26.2 — 26.€
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ (11.1) $ 190.1 $ (4.6) $ 174.4

The following tables illustrate the amounts redkess from accumulated other comprehensive (losspime shown in the above tables that

been included in our Consolidated Statements afrirec

(in millions)

Unrealized gains and losses on securi
Net realized investment loss
Benefit for income taxe

Net of taxes
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For the Six Months
Ended June 30

2015 2014

For the Three Months
Ended June 30

2015 2014

$ (95 $ (16.1) $
2.8 3.0
$ (6.7 % (13.1) $

(7.0 $ (16.2)
2.9 3.1
(4.1) $ (13.0)




9. Net Income Per Common Share

The following table presents the calculation of ileome per common share on a basic and diluteid @l balances have been adjuste
reflect the 10% stock dividend):

For the Three Months Ended June  For the Six Months Ended June

30, 30,

(in millions, except number of shares and per shareunts’ 2015 2014 2015 2014
Net income $ 27¢ $ 38.€ $ 86.7 $ 78.8
Weighted average common shares outstan- basic 27,948,97: 28,761,13! 28,038,831 28,962,401
Effect of dilutive securities

Equity compensation awar 521,76: 513,43: 534,72¢ 505,307
Weighted average common shares outstan- diluted 28,470,74. 29,274,57. 28,573,56; 29,467,71.
Net income per common sha

Basic $ 1.0C $ 134 $ 3.0¢ $ 2.72

Diluted $ 0.9¢8 $ 132 $ 3.02 $ 2.67

Excluded from the weighted average common sharestamaling calculation at June 30, 2015, and 20&49¢095,585 shares and 8,233
shares, respectively, which are held as treasuagesh The shares are excluded as of their repwealae. For the three and six months e
June 30, 2015, equity compensation awards to psech@4 shares of common stock were excluded frensdmputation of diluted net inco
per common share as these instruments weredéuiive. These instruments expired during the secquarter 2015. For the three and
months ended June 30, 2014, equity compensatiordavta purchase 2,611 shares of common stock wetaded from the computation
diluted net income per common share as these metits were antililutive. These instruments expired or will expaevarying times froi
2014 through 2016.

10. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Income taxes paitWe paid income taxes of $10.5 million and $15.6ianlduring the six months ended June 30, 201528dl, respectively.

Income taxes recovere. During the six months ended June 30, 2015, $irilllon of income taxes was recovered. No incomeawer
recovered during the six months ended June 30,.2014

Interest paid

For the Six Months Ended June 30

(in millions) 2015 2014
Senior unsecured fixed rate no $ 47 $ 4.7
Junior subordinated debentu 3.5 3.9
Other indebtednes 1.2 1.4
Total interest pail $ 94 $ 10.C

11. Share-based Compensatiot

The fair value method of accounting is used foritygbased compensation plans. Under the fair value adetompensation cost is measi
based on the fair value of the award at the meamnedate and recognized over the requisite sepgaced. We use the Blackeholes mod
to estimate the fair values on the measurementfdatehare options and share appreciation rigf8®\Rs”). The BlackScholes model us
several assumptions to value a share award. Tladilitplassumption is based on the historical cleimgour stock price over the previous-
years preceding the measurement date. Th-free rate of return assumption is based on theyfaar U.S. Treasury constant maturity rat
the measurement date. The expected award lifesisdbapon the average holding period over the Kisibthe incentive plan. The expec
dividend yield is based on our history and expedigaiend payouts.
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The following table summarizes the assumptions sezldor the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

2015 2014
Risk-free rate of retur 1.70% 1.64%
Expected dividend yielc 1.57% 1.55%
Expected award life (year 4.62 4.71
Expected volatility 21.10% 23.41%

All outstanding awards were adjusted to reflect1b@6 stock dividend, resulting in a 10% increasthionumber of awards outstanding a
9.09% reduction in the exercise price.

Argo Grouy's Long-Term Incentive Plans

In November 2007, our shareholders approved th@ 20dig-Term Incentive Plan (the “2007 Plan@hich provides for an aggregate of
million shares of our common stock that may bedssto executives, noemployee directors, and other key employees. Adaf 2014, 1.4
million shares remained available for grant undher 2007 Plan. In May 2014, our shareholders apprétve 2014 Longrerm Incentive Ple
(the “2014 Plan”), which provides for an additior2aB million shares of our common stock to be adé for issuance to executives, non
employee directors and other key employees. Theeshaards may be in the form of share options, SA&sricted shares, restricted sl
awards, restricted share units awards, performanegds, other share-based awards and otherbzsstt awards. Shares issued under this
may be shares that are authorized and unissudthogssthat we reacquired, including shares purchasdhe open market. Share options
SARs will count as one share for the purposes elfithits under the incentive plans; restricted ebarestricted share units, performance
performance shares or other shbased incentive awards which settle in common shailt count as 2.75 shares for purpose of thet$
under the 2014 Plan.

Share options may be in the form of incentive slmtions, norgualified share options and restorative optionsr8loptions are required
have an exercise price that is not less than th&ehgalue on the date of grant. We are prohibitedh repricing the options. The term of
share options cannot exceed seven years from éme date.

A summary of restricted share activity as of Jupe2®15 and changes during the six months thendeisdes follows:

Weighted-Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at January 1, 20 313,71¢ $ 31.38
Grantec 297,87 $ 39.21
Vested and issue (118,887 $ 26.78
Expired or forfeitec (8,93¢) $ 41.76
Outstanding at June 30, 20 483,76¢ $ 37.14

The restricted shares vest over two to four yeaxpense recognized under this plan for the resttishares was $1.5 million and $3.0 mil
for the threeand six months ended June 30, 2015, respectivelgorpared to $0.7 million and $1.4 million for theee and six months enc
June 30, 2014, respectively. Compensation expemsallf share-based compensation awards is includednderwriting, acquisition ar
insurance expensdi the accompanying Consolidated Statements ofnhecd\s of June 30, 2015, there was $15.5 milliotot#l unrecognize
compensation cost related to restricted share cosapien arrangements granted by Argo Group.

A summary of stock-settled SARs activity as of J8Ae2015 and changes during the six months thdaceis as follows:

Weighted-Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 20 1,313,72¢ $ 28.57
Grantec 243,30 $ 39.43
Exercisec (78,02%) $ 26.26
Expired or forfeitec (7,230) $ 31.68
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,471,77¢ $ 29.67

The stock-settled SARs vest over a one to four pedod. Upon exercise of the stos&ttled SARs, the employee is entitled to receiaees ¢
our common stock equal to the appreciation of theksas compared to the exercise price. Expensgnézed for
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the stock-settled SARs was $0.3 milliom@ $1.0 for the three and six months ended Jun@(@IH, respectively, as compared to $0.7 mi
and $1.3 million for the three and six months endade 30, 2014, respectively. As of June 30, 2@ié&re was $3.7 million of tot
unrecognized compensat ion cost related to stoitlkede&SARS outstanding.

A summary of cash-settled SARs activity as of JB®e2015 and changes during the six months theackisdas follows:

Weighted-Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 20 2,001,45. $ 32.76
Grantec 913,157 $ 47.48
Exercisec (306,27¢) $ 29.22
Expired or forfeitec (91,937 $ 37.22
Outstanding at June 30, 20 2,5616,39¢( $ 38.37

The cash-settled SARs vest over a one to four peend. Upon exercise of the casbttled SARs, the employee is entitled to receas
payment for the appreciation in the value of ounown stock over the exercise price. We accounth®icashsettled SARs as liability awart
which require the awards to be revalued at eactbrtieg period. Expense recognized for the csstiled SARs was $8.5 million and $1
million for the three and six months ended June2BQ5, respectively, as compared to $5.3 milliod $8.0 million for the three and six mon
ended June 30, 2014, respectively. As of June @05,2here was $17.0 million of total unrecognizethpensation cost related to casttle
SARs outstanding.

12. Underwriting, Acquisition and Insurance Expenses

Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense®ws follows:

For the Three Months Ended June 30 For the Six Months Ended June 3(C

(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Commission $ 67.2 $ 63.2 $ 125.¢€ $ 118.2
General expense 79.7 74.1 152.€ 142.€
Premium taxes, boards and bure — 5.7 0.6 12.3
146.€ 143.1 279.1 273.4
Net deferral of policy acquisition cos (7.4) (6.3) (10.0) (7.9)
Total underwriting, acquisition and insurance exq&s $ 139.E $ 136.6 $ 269.1 $ 265.5

Included in general expenses for the three montdged June 30, 2015 and 2014 was $10.4 million &8 #illion, respectively, and $1!
million and $11.1 million for the six months endaghe 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, of expenseufiototal equity compensation.

13. Income Taxes

We are incorporated under the laws of Bermuda ander current Bermuda law, are not obligated to smay taxes in Bermuda based u
income or capital gains. We have received an uallieig from the Supervisor of Insurance in Bermudaspant to the provisions of 1
Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection Act, 2011 clwlexempts us from any Bermuda taxes computed afitpincome or any capital as:
gain or appreciation or any tax in the nature ¢dtesduty or inheritance tax, at least until thary2035.

We do not consider ourselves to be engaged irda abusiness in the United States or the Unitegd#om and, accordingly, do not expec
be subject to direct United States or United Kingdocome taxation.

We have subsidiaries based in the United Kingdoat éine subject to the tax laws of that country. &inclrrent law, these subsidiaries
taxed at the applicable corporate tax rates. SithefUnited Kingdom subsidiaries are deemed torigmged in business in the United St:
and therefore, are subject to United States cotpdex in respect of a proportion of their Unite@t8s underwriting business only. Relie
available against the United Kingdom tax liabikti@ respect of overseas taxes paid that arise tihemunderwriting business. Corporate inc
tax losses incurred in the United Kingdom can beiea forward, for application against future inaenindefinitely. Our United Kingdo
subsidiaries file separate United Kingdom incomxeré&urns.

We have subsidiaries based in the United Statesathasubject to United States tax laws. Undereruriaw, these subsidiaries are taxed &
applicable corporate tax rates. Our United Staiesidiaries file a consolidated United States fabi@come tax return.

23




We alsohave operations in Belgium, Switzerland, Brazikrre, Malta, Spain and Ireland, which also areeqiilip income taxes imposed
the jurisdiction in which they operate. We haveragiens in the United Arab Emirates, which are swibject to income ta under the laws

that country.

Our income tax provision includes the following quonents:

For the Three Months Ended June For the Six Months Ended June

30, 30,
(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current tax provisiol $ 9.0 % 29 % 88 $ 4.3
Deferred tax (benefit) provision related
Future tax deductior (2.9) 3.0 2.6 33.2
Valuation allowance chang 0.7 0.2 (1.0) (28.€)
Income tax provisiol $ 6.8 $ 6.1 $ 104 $ 8.6

Our expected income tax provision computed on @xertcome (loss) at the weighted average tax rasebleen calculated as the sum of the pr
tax income (loss) in each jurisdiction multipliey that jurisdictions applicable statutory tax rate. For the three sinadnonths ended June
2015 and 2014, pre-tax income (loss) attributableur operations and the operations’ effectivertd®s were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended June 30,

(in millions) 2015 2014
Effective Effective
Pre-Tax Tax Pre-Tax Tax
Income (Loss) Rate Income (Loss) Rate
Bermuda $ 18.3 0.0% $ 25.C 0.0%
United State! 20.2 27.C% 20.9 24.1%
United Kingdom (2.9) -46.9% (5.4) -19.4%
Belgium 0.1 16.5% — @ 64.2%
Brazil (1.2 0.0% 5.1 0.0%
United Arab Emirate 0.1 0.0% (0.2) 0.0%
Ireland 0.2) 0.0% — @ 0.0%
Malta 0.2 0.0% (0.6) 0.0%
Switzerland — @ -36.7% (0.2 18.2%
Pre-tax income $ 34.7 $ 447
For the Six Months Ended June 30,
(in millions) 2015 2014
Effective Effective
Pre-Tax Tax Pre-Tax Tax
Income (Loss) Rate Income (Loss) Rate
Bermuda $ 44.C 0.0% 46.9 0.0%
United State: 48.7 23.0% 35.7 22.71%
United Kingdom 7.2 -12.0% 1.9 25.4%
Belgium (0.2) -24.2% — @ 43.3%
Brazil (3.0 0.0% 51 0.0%
United Arab Emirate 0.1 0.0% (2.0 0.0%
Ireland 0.2) 0.0% — @ 0.0%
Malta 0.3 0.0% (2.0 0.0%
Switzerlanc — @ -18.6% 0.2 21.0%
Pre-tax income $ 97.1 $ 87.4

@ Pre-tax income for the respective year was less thah $lion.
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A reconciliation of the difference between the psan for income taxes and the expected tax prowisit the weighted average tax rate
follows:

For the Three Months Ended June

30, For the Six Months Ended June 30
(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Income tax provision at expected r $ 6.2 $ 98 $ 174 $ 14.5
Tax effect of:
Tax-exempt interes (1.0 (1.2) (1.9 (2.3)
Dividends received deductic (0.6) (0.6) (1.2) (1.2
Valuation allowance chan 0.7 0.2 (1.0 (28.9
Other permanent adjustments, — (2.0 0.2 (0.9)
Adjustment for annualized ra 0.3 (2.6) (0.2) (1.8)
United States state tax (benefit) expe — (0.2) (2.5) —
Capital loss carryforward from prior merg — — — 29.8
Other foreign adjustmen 0.4 — 0.1 —
Prior period adjustments to deferi — (2.0) — (2.0)
Prior year foreign taxes recover — — (1.2 —
Foreign exchange adjustme 0.6 2.3 0.4 0.1
Foreign withholding taxe 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3
Income tax provisiol $ 68 $ 6.1 $ 104 $ 8.6
Income tax provision (benefi- Foreign $ 14 $ 10 $ (0.8) $ 0.4
Income tax provisio- United States, Feder 5.2 5.0 14.7 7.8
Income tax (benefit) provisio- United States, sta — (0.2) (3.8) 0.1
Foreign withholding ta- United State: 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3
Income tax provisiol $ 6.8 $ 6.1 $ 104 $ 8.6

We recognize potential accrued interest and pesaitiithin our global operations in “Interest expggnand ‘Underwriting, acquisition ar
insurance expenses,” respectively, in our Cons@di&tatements of Income.

Our net deferred tax assets (liabilities) are sujgploby taxes paid in previous periods, reversaae@ble temporary differences and recogn
of future income. Management regularly evaluatesrtétoverability of the deferred tax assets andesi@ny necessary adjustments to 1
based upon any changes in managemeatpectations of future taxable income. Realipatib deferred tax assets is dependent upol
generation of sufficient taxable income in the fatto recover tax benefits that cannot be recovéwed taxes paid in the carryback per
which is generally two years for net operating éssand three years for capital losses for our drit@tes operations. At June 30, 2015, we
a total net deferred tax liability of $16.8 milligurior to any valuation allowance. Management hascluded that a valuation allowanc:
required for a portion of the tax effected net apieg loss carryforward of $17.3 million generafesm a prior merger and for the tax effec
net operating loss carryforward of $1.0 millionrfrcARIS. Of the net operating carryforwards fromrenpmerger, $15.8 million will expire
not used by December 31, 2025 and $1.5 million expire if not used by December 31, 2027. Of théRRss carryforward, $0.2 million w
expire if not used by December 31, 2027, $0.4 amillivill expire if not used by December 31, 2028 &34 million will expire if not used t
December 31, 2029. The valuation allowances hawn lestablished as Internal Revenue Code SectiodiB®23 the application of n
operating loss and net capital loss carryforwaallewing an ownership change. The loss carryforsadailable per year are $2.8 millior
required by Internal Revenue Code Section 382 heuyrdue to cumulative losses since inception, gament has concluded that a value
allowance is required for the full amount of the &ffected net operating losses generated by oariBand Malta entities. Accordingly
valuation allowance of $24.4 million is required afs June 30, 2015 of which $15.4 million relatesthe prior merger and ARIS Ic
carryforwards, $7.2 million relates to Brazil op#as, and $1.8 million relates to Malta operatidfsr the six months ended June 30, 201¢
valuation allowance was reduced by $0.5 milliont@ieing to the prior merger and ARIS loss carryfards, decreased by $0.2 mill
pertaining to our Brazil operations and decrease$ith3 million pertaining to our Malta operations.

We had no material unrecognized tax benefits aipé 30, 2015 and 2014. Our United States subgisliare no longer subject to U.S. fed

and state income tax examinations by tax authsrftie years before 2011. Our United Kingdom sulasids are no longer subject to Un
Kingdom income tax examinations by Her Majesty’v&waie and Customs for years before 2012.
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14 . Commitments and Contingencies

Argo Groups subsidiaries are parties to legal actions incalea their business. Based on the opinion of selrmanagement believes that
resolution of these matters will not materiallyesff our financial condition or results of operation

We have contractual commitments to invest up to.S7illion related to our limited partnership inteents at June 30, 2015. Th
commitments will be funded as required by the paghip agreements.

15. Segment Information

We are primarily engaged in underwriting propentyl @asualty insurance and reinsurance. We haveofogming reporting segments: Exc
and Surplus Lines, Commercial Specialty, IntermatioSpecialty and Syndicate 1200. Additionally, have a Rureff Lines segment fc
certain products that we no longer underwrite.

We consider many factors, including the natureamhesegmens’ insurance and reinsurance products, productioress, distribution strateg
and the regulatory environment, in determining howaggregate reporting segments.

In evaluating the operating performance of our sEus) we focus on core underwriting and investiegults before the consideratior
realized gains or losses from the sales of investsneRealized investment gains are reported asngpaoent of the Corporate and Of
segment, as decisions regarding the acquisitiordambsal of securities reside with the investnfenttion and are not under the control of
individual business segments. Identifiable assgtelgment are those assets used in the operateacbfsegment.

Revenue and income (loss) before income taxesaftii segment were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended June 30 For the Six Months Ended June 30
(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenue
Earned premium
Excess and Surplus Lin $ 1311 $ 125z $ 2542 $ 2427
Commercial Specialt 71.7 71.1 144.: 142.€
International Specialt 38.3 37.6 75.6 74.6
Syndicate 120 104.5 102.2 206.4 201t
Rur-off Lines 0.4 (0.2) 0.1 0.2
Total earned premiurr 346.C 336.1 680.€ 661.€
Net investment incom
Excess and Surplus Lin 9.0 9.0 17.5 18.3
Commercial Specialt 4.7 4.6 9.2 9.3
International Specialt 3.0 2.0 5.9 3.8
Syndicate 120! 2.4 2.1 4.6 5.8
Rur-off Lines 2.1 2.3 4.1 4.8
Corporate and Othe 0.6 0.6 1.3 1.9
Total net investment incorn 21.8 20.6 42.6 43.9
Net realized investment and other gz 5.3 18.5 21.3 29.6
Total revenue $ 373.1 $ 375.2 $ 7445 3 735.3
For the Three Months Ended June 30 For the Six Months Ended June 30
(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Income (loss) before income tax
Excess and Surplus Lin $ 242 % 282 % 489 $ 48.3
Commercial Specialt 4.6 (0.5) 8.4 1.2
International Specialt 8.8 5.6 17.9 124
Syndicate 120! 10.1 10.1 21.1 25.9
Rur-off Lines (1.1) (3.4) 0.1 (9.3)
Total segment income before tas 46.6 40.0 96.4 78.5
Corporate and Othe (17.2) (13.9) (20.6) (20.7)
Net realized investment and other ge 5.3 18.5 21.3 29.6
Total income before income tax $ 347 $ 447 % 97.1 $ 87.4
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The table below presents earned premiums by gebigrdpcation for the three and six months endedeJ8@d , 2015 and 2014For this
disclosure, we determine geographic location bycthentry of domicile of our subsidiaries that urvdigte the business and not by the loca
of insureds or reinsured s from whom the business generated.

For the Three Months Ended June 30, For the Six Months Ended June 30,

(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Bermuda $ 261 $ 243 $ 50.C $ 48.7
Brazil 11.9 11.8 24 4 24 4
Malta 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.1
United Kingdom 104.5 102.€ 206.4 201.t
United State! 203.1 196.€ 398.€ 386.1

Total earned premiun $ 346.C $ 336.1 $ 680.6 $ 661.¢

The following table represents identifiable assets:

June 30, December 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014

Excess and Surplus Lin $ 24112 $ 2,350.7

Commercial Specialt 1,358.2 1,358.¢

International Specialt 836.32 776.€

Syndicate 120! 1,316.¢ 1,258.k

Rur-off Lines 577.C 552.¢

Corporate and Othe 44.9 59.C

Total $ 6,544.C $ 6,356.:

Included in total assets at June 30, 2015 and DieeeB1, 2014 are $341.6 million and $315.4 millicegpectively, in assets associated
trade capital providers.

16. Information Provided in Connection with Outstanding Debt of Subsidiaries

The following tables present condensed consoligdiimancial information at June 30, 2015 and Decen8i, 2014 and for the three and
months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, for Argo Gfthep“Parent Guarantor”) and Argo Group US (thetiSidiary Issuer”)The Subsidiar
Issuer is an indirect wholly subsidiary of the Par@uarantor. Investments in subsidiaries are agedufor by the Parent Guarantor undel
equity method for purposes of the supplemental @aleting presentation. Earnings of subsidiaries ieflected in the Parent Guaransor’
investment accounts and earnings.

The Parent Guarantor fully and unconditionally gudees certain of the debt of the Subsidiary IssGendensed consolidating finan
information of the Subsidiary Issuer is presentedia@onsolidated basis and consists principalthefnet assets, results of operations and
flows of operating insurance company subsidiaries.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2015

(in millions)
Argo Group
International
Holdings, Ltd Argo Group US, Inc.  Other Subsidiaries
(Parent and Subsidiaries and Eliminations Consolidating
Guarantor) (Subsidiary Issuer) [ Adjustments (2) Total
Assets
Investments $ 37 $ 2,785.¢ $ 1,292¢ % — $4,082.2
Cash — 72.4 34.1 — 106.5
Accrued investment incorr — 16.5 4.1 — 20.€
Premiums receivabl — 177.€ 271.1 — 448.€
Reinsurance recoverabl — 1,168.5 (149.3) — 1,019.
Goodwill and other intangible assets, — 131.2 97.4 — 228.7
Current income taxes receivable, — 0.7 5.3 — 6.0
Deferred acquisition costs, r — 62.3 77.0 — 139.:
Ceded unearned premiui — 111.C 150.¢€ — 261.€
Other asset 11.C 160.€ 65.2 (6.4) 230.7
Due (to) from affiliates (39.3 (3.2 3.1 39.3 —
Intercompany note receivak — 56.2 (56.2) — —
Investments in subsidiari 1,738.¢ — — (1,738.6) —
Total assets $ 1,714.C $ 4,740.1 $ 1,795.¢ $ (1,705.7) $6,544.(
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment exp $ — 3 2,139 $ 938.7 $ — $3,078.:
Unearned premiurnr — 477.1 419.2 — 896.4
Funds held and ceded reinsurance payable — 654.4 (334.7) — 320.2
Long-term debt 28.4 288.7 56.1 — 373.2
Deferred tax liabilities, ne — 30.5 10.7 — 41.2
Accrued underwriting expenses and other liabili 16.7 93.9 55.2 — 165.€
Total liabilities 45.1 3,684.1 1,145.¢ — 4,875.]
Total shareholders' equity 1,668.¢ 1,056.( 649.7 (1,705.7)  1,668.¢
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 1,714.C $ 47401 $ 1,795.¢ $ (1,705.7) $6,544.(

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliaiions.

@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2014

(in millions)
Argo Group
International
Holdings, Ltd Argo Group US, Inc.  Other Subsidiaries
(Parent and Subsidiaries and Eliminations Consolidating
Guarantor) (Subsidiary Issuer) [ Adjustments (2) Total
Assets
Investments $ 07 $ 2,841t % 12557 % — $4,097.¢
Cash — 49.3 31.7 — 81.C
Accrued investment incorr — 17.8 4.3 — 22.1
Premiums receivabl — 154.€ 199.C — 353.€
Reinsurance recoverabl — 1,173.€ (176.4) — 997.2
Goodwill and other intangible assets, — 131.7 99.1 — 230.¢
Current income taxes receivable, — 10.1 4.8 — 14.9
Deferred acquisition costs, r — 58.0 66.6 — 124.¢€
Ceded unearned premiui — 98.5 109.1 — 207.€
Other asset 9.6 174.1 67.9 (25.0) 226.€
Due from (to) affiliates 2.9 (19.9) 19.8 (2.9) —
Intercompany note receivak — 72.0 (72.0) — —
Investments in subsidiari 1,698.( — — (1,698.0)
Total assets $ 1,711 $ 4761.c $ 1,609.¢ $ (1,725.9) $ 6,356.1
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment exp $ — 3 2,136.« $ 906.C $ — $3,042.¢
Unearned premiurnr — 448.¢ 368.3 — 817.2
Funds held and ceded reinsurance payable — 675.1 (441.9) — 233.¢
Long-term debt 49.C 288.7 61.4 (20.6) 378.t
Deferred tax liabilities, ne — 41.2 11.8 — 53.C
Accrued underwriting expenses and other liabili 155 104.Z 65.0 — 184.7
Total liabilities 64.5 3,694.k 971.2 (20.6)  4,709.¢
Total shareholders' equity 1,646." 1,066.¢ 638.4 (1,705.9)  1,646.%
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 1,711 $ 4761.c $ 1,609.¢ $ (1,725.9) $ 6,356.1

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliaiions.
@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Premiums and other revent
Earned premium
Net investment (expense) incol
Net realized investment and other gains (I
Total revenus
Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment expet
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance
expense
Interest expens
Fee expense (income), r
Foreign currency exchange Ic
Total expense
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision for income taxe
Net income (loss) before equity in earning:
subsidiarie:!
Equity in undistributed earnings of
subsidiarie:
Net income

(in millions)
Argo Group
International Argo Group US, Inc.  Other Subsidiaries

Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations

Consolidating

(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) 1) Adjustments () Total
$ — $ 118.¢ % 2272 $ — $ 346.C
(0.3 14.C 8.1 — 21.8
2.0 7.4 (2.2) (2.0) 5.3
1.7 140.2 233.2 (2.00 373.1
— 64.4 126.2 — 190.€
4.8 49.€ 85.1 — 139.5
0.2 3.8 0.6 — 4.6
— 1.6 (0.9) — 0.7
— 0.1 2.9 — 3.0
5.0 119.F 213.€ — 338.4
(3.3) 20.7 19.3 (2.0) 34.7
— 5.4 1.4 — 6.8
(3.3) 15.2 17.9 (2.0) 27.9
31.2 — — (31.2) —
$ 27¢ $ 153 $ 179 $ (33.2) $ 27.9

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.
@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

(in millions)
Argo Group
International Argo Group US, Inc. Other Subsidiaries Consolidating
Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations  Adjustments
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) 1) () Total
Premiums and other revent
Earned premium $ — $ 1175 $ 218€ $ — $ 336.1
Net investment (expense) incol (0. 13.8 6.9 — 20.6
Net realized investment and other gains (I — 13.9 4.6 — 18.5
Total revenue (0.1) 145.2 230.1 — 375.2
Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment expet — 68.8 116.2 — 185.1
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance
expense 4.1 50.1 82.6 — 136.¢
Interest expens 0.6 3.7 0.9 (0.2) 5.1
Fee expense (income), r — 1.7 (1.6) — 0.1
Foreign currency exchange (gain) — (0.2) 3.5 — 3.4
Total expense 4.7 124.2 201.7 (0.1) 330.5
Income (loss) before income tax (4.8) 21.0 28.4 0.1 44.7
Provision for income taxe — 5.1 1.0 — 6.1
Net income (loss) before equity in earning:
subsidiarie: (4.8) 15.9 27.4 0.1 38.6
Equity in undistributed earnings of
subsidiarie: 4314 — — (43.9) —
Net income $ 38.6 $ 159 $ 274 $ (43.3) $ 38.6

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.
@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Premiums and other revent
Earned premium
Net investment (expense) incol
Net realized investment and other gains (I
Total revenue
Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment expet
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance
expense
Interest expens
Fee expense (income), r
Foreign currency exchange loss (g¢
Total expense
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision (benefit) for income tax
Net income (loss) before equity in earningt
subsidiarie:
Equity in undistributed earnings of
subsidiarie:
Net income

(in millions)

Argo Group
International

Argo Group US, Inc.

Other Subsidiaries

Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations Consolidating
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) Adjustments () Total
$ — $ 253.¢ $ 426.7 — 680.€
(0.5) 28.5 14.6 — 42.6
2.0 23.3 (2.0) (2.0) 21.3
1.5 305.7 439.% (2.0) 744.E
— 144.¢ 229.7 — 374.¢
9.5 101.5 158.1 — 269.1
0.7 7.6 1.2 — 9.5
= 2.4 (1.3) = 1.1
— 0.9 (7.5) — (6.6)
10.2 257.C 380.2 — 647.4
(8.7) 48.7 59.1 (2.0) 97.1
= 11.2 (0.8) = 10.4
(8.7) 375 59.¢ (2.0) 86.7
95.4 = = (95.4) =
$ 86.7 $ 375 $ 59.8 $ (974 $  86.7

(I Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.
@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

(in millions)
Argo Group
International Argo Group US, Inc. Other Subsidiaries Consolidating
Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations Adjustments
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) [ () Total
Premiums and other revent
Earned premium $ — $ 229.t $ 4322 $ — $ 661.€
Net investment (expense) incol (0.2 28.8 15.3 — 43.9
Net realized investment and other gains (I — 25.4 4.2 — 29.6
Total revenue (0.2) 283.7 451.¢ — 735.2
Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment expet — 141.: 226.35 — 367.€
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance
expense 10.1 96.4 159.C — 265.5
Interest expens 1.2 7.5 1.6 (0.2 10.1
Fee expense (income), r — 3.0 (1.5 — 15
Foreign currency exchange (gain) — (0.2 3.4 — 3.2
Total expense 11.3 248.C 388.¢ (0.2) 647.€
Income (loss) before income tax (11.5) 35.7 63.C 0.2 87.4
Provision for income taxe — 8.1 0.5 — 8.6
Net income (loss) before equity in earning:
subsidiarie: (11.5) 27.6 62.5 0.2 78.8
Equity in undistributed earnings of
subsidiarie: 90.3 — — (90.3) —
Net income $ 78.6 $ 27.€ $ 62.5 $ (90.1) $ 78.8

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.
@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net cash flows from operating activiti
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from sales of investme
Maturities and mandatory calls of fixed
maturity investment
Purchases of investmer
Change in short-term investments and
foreign regulatory deposi
Settlements of foreign currency exchange
forward contract
Purchases of fixed assets and other
Cash used by investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under intercompany note,
Activity under stock incentive plar
Repurchase of Company's common sh
Excess tax expense from share-based
payment arrangemer
Payment of cash dividend to common
shareholder
Cash used by financing activiti
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Change in cas
Cash, beginning of the peri
Cash, end of peria

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliations.

(in millions)
Argo Group
International Argo Group US, Inc. Other Subsidiaries
Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations Consolidating
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) 1) Adjustments (2) Total
$ 114 $ 20.7 $ 62.5 $ — $ 946
= 493.4 150.5 = 643.¢
— 311.7 70.9 — 382.€
— (770.6) (246.7) — (1,017
0.2 (6.9) (34.0 — (40.7)
0.8 — (5.4) — (4.6)
0.2 (0.4) 4.4 — 4.2
1.2 27.2 (60.3) = (31.9)
(1.4) — — — (1.4)
= (24.9 = = (24.9)
— 0.1 — — 0.1
(11.2) — — — (11.2)
(12.6) (24.9) — — (37.9)
— — 0.2 — 0.2
— 23.1 2.4 — 25.5
— 49.3 31.7 — 81.0
$ — $ 724 $ 341 $ — $ 106.F

@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Net cash flows from operating activiti
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from sales of investme
Maturities and mandatory calls of fixed
maturity investment
Purchases of investmer
Change in short-term investments and
foreign regulatory deposi
Settlements of foreign currency exchange
forward contract
Issuance of intercompany note,
Purchases of fixed assets and other
Cash (used) provided by investing activit
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under intercompany note,
Activity under stock incentive plar
Repurchase of Company's common sh
Payment of cash dividend to common
shareholder
Cash provided (used) by financing activit
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Change in cas
Cash, beginning of peric
Cash, end of peria

(in millions)
Argo Group
International Argo Group US, Inc.  Other Subsidiaries
Holdings, Ltd and Subsidiaries and Eliminations Consolidating
(Parent Guarantor)  (Subsidiary Issuer) [ Adjustments ) Total
$ (14.3) $ (42.2) $ 26.€ $ 64 $ (239
— $ 389.€ 242.7 — 632.2
— $ 100.€ 56.2 — 156.€
— $ (481.0 (285.2) — (766.2)
0.7 $ 24.9 24.9 — 50.5
(0.1) — 0.2 — 0.1
— 3 14.5 (41.5) 27.0 —
6.8) $ (5.6) (15.2) (6.4)  (34.0
6.2 $ 43.C (17.9) 20.6 39.5
27.C — — (27.0) —
2.2 — 0.1 — 2.3
— 3% (31.2 — — (31.2)
(8.7) — — — (8.7)
20.5 (31.2) 0.1 (27.0) (37.6)
— — 0.4 — 0.4
— $ (30.4) 9.2 — (21.2)
— 3 132.1 25.3 — 157.4
$ — 3 1017 $ 345 $ = 136.2

@ Includes all other subsidiaries of Argo Group Intional Holdings, Ltd. and all intercompany eliaions.

@ Includes all Argo Group parent company eliminatic
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following is a discussion and analysis of asutts of operations for the six months ended Be€015 compared with the six mor
ended June 30, 2014, and also a discussion ofimadial condition as of June 30, 2015. This disimrs and analysis should be rea
conjunction with the attached unaudited interim €#itated Financial Statements and notes theretcAago Groups Annual Report on Fot
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 filedh e Securities and Exchange Commission (“SE®"February 27, 2015, including
audited Consolidated Financial Statements and ttloégsto.

Forward Looking Statements

Managemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord dResults of Operations, Quantitative and QualitaDisclosures Abo
Market Risk and the accompanying Consolidated KirsduStatements (including the notes thereto) naytain “forward looking statements,”
which are made pursuant to the safe harbor provgsid the Private Securities Litigation Reform A€t1995. The forward looking stateme
are based on our current expectations and belafserning future developments and their potenfigces on us. There can be no assur
that actual developments will be those anticipdiedis. Actual results may differ materially as aule of significant risks and uncertainti
including nonreceipt of expected payments, capital markets hait effect on investment income and fair valuehaf investment portfoli
development of claims and the effect on loss resgraccuracy in estimating loss reserves, chamgdgidemand for our products, effec
general economic conditions, adverse governmeiglétigpn and regulations, government investigations industry practices, developme
relating to existing agreements, heightened conigetichanges in pricing environments and changessset valuations. For a more detz
discussion of risks and uncertainties, see ouripdtihgs made with the SEC. We undertake no ddtlign to publicly update any forward-
looking statements.

Generally, it is our policy to communicate everftattmay have a material adverse impact on our tipesaor financial position, includii
property and casualty catastrophic events and rabtesses in the investment portfolio, in a timetanner through a public announcement.
also our policy not to make public announcementmnding events that are believed to have no matadeerse impact on our results
operations or financial position based on managé&seaurrent estimates and available information, rothan through regularly schedu
calls, press releases or filings.

Consolidated Results of Operations

For the three and six months ended June 30, 20&5eported net income of $27.9 million and $86.Hiom, or $0.98 and $3.03 per dilut
share, respectively. For the three and six moeititked June 30, 2014, we reported net income oB6%88lion and $78.8 million, or $1.32 a
$2.67 per diluted share, respectively.

The following is a comparison of selected data fiawm operations:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Gross written premium $ 557.¢ $ 520.1 $ 1,034 $ 983.2
Earned premium $ 346.C % 336.1 3% 680.6 $ 661.€
Net investment incom 21.8 20.6 42.6 43.9
Net realized investment and other g 5.3 18.5 21.3 29.6

Total revenus $ 373.1 % 3752 $ 7445 % 735.¢
Income before income tax 347 % 44.7 97.1 % 87.4
Provision for income taxe 6.8 6.1 10.4 8.6

Net income $ 279 $ 386 $ 86.7 $ 78.8
Loss ratia 55.1% 55.1% 55.C% 55.6%
Expense ratit 40.3% 40.7% 39.5% 40.1%
Combined ratic 95.4% 95.8% 94.5% 95.7%

The increase in consolidated gross written andeshpremiums was primarily attributable to growthaar segments resulting from «
introduction of new products and increased renevifgdstially offsetting these increases for themsonths ended June 30, 2015 were declin
gross written premiums in the International Spégiakegment due to increased competition in the gntgpreinsurance market. All of ¢
segments have been impacted by increased competitith pressure on rates.

Consolidated net investment income increased ferttinee months ended June 30, 2015 as comparée ame period of 2014 due to
timing of receipt of dividend and other income. nSolidated net investment income decreased fosihmonths ended June
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30, 2015 as compared to the same period of 2014¢dumarily to the continued reinvestment at marnketds below the portfoli® book yiels
and an increased focus on total portfolio retustative to current income.

Consolidated net realized gains for the three noatided June 30, 2015 primarily consisted of $8lleomof gains recognized from our equ
portfolio, partially offset by $2.8 million in netealized losses from our fixed maturity and otherested assets portfolio, including
investments accounted for under the equity metAdditionally, for the three months ended June 31,322we recognized $1.4 million of other-
thantemporary impairment losses on certain investmeatisties. Consolidated net realized gains forttiree months ended June 30, =
primarily consisted of $8.9 million from our equipprtfolio and $9.0 million from our other investaedsets portfolio, partially offset by $
million other-thantemporary impairment losses on certain investmeotsties. Consolidated net realized gains forsilvenonths ended Ju
30, 2015 included $11.7 million from our equity @olio and $12.8 million from our other investedsats portfolio, partially offset by $1
million in other-thantemporary impairment losses. Consolidated netizexlgains for the six months ended June 30, 28&Hided $15.
million from our equity portfolio and $16.8 milliofrom our other invested assets portfolio, pastiaffset by $1.4 million in other-than-
temporary impairment losses.

We have purchased foreign currency future forwamdtreicts to manage currency exposure on lossetedeta the New Zealand and Ja
earthquakes and Australian floods. The open cotsttzave a term of 90 days to match the anticippégtinent pattern of the associated lo:
and may be renewed at the end of each term. Wwtdapply hedge accounting to these contractsyrasut, all gains (losses) were recogn
in net realized investment gains (losses). Forthihee months ended June 30, 2015, we recogniz&dndilion in foreign currency exchan
gains related to the loss reserves recorded faetlewents which were offset by $0.6 million in iz&d losses from the currency forw
contracts. For the six months ended June 30, 20&5ecognized foreign currency exchange gains df $iillion related to the loss reser
recorded for these events which were offset by $iilion in realized losses from the currency fordicontracts. The foreign curret
exchange gains related to these loss reserveshanedlized losses from the currency forward cotgrare reported under the Corporate
Other segment.

Consolidated losses and loss adjustment expenges3480.6 million and $185.1 million for the thnemnths ended June 30, 2015 and 2
respectively. Included in losses and loss adjustregpenses for the three months ended June 3@, ®@% $5.0 million of net favorat
development on prior accident year loss reservamapily attributable to favorable development imetgeneral liability, property line
commercial automobile and reinsurance lines pértafset by unfavorable development in the workessnpensation and commercial multi-
peril lines. Partially offsetting this favorableserve development was $2.3 million in catastrdpkses resulting from storm activity in
United States. Included in losses and loss adprstrexpenses for the three months ended June 30,28s $12.0 million in large losses
the 2014 accident year. Also included in losses lass adjustment expenses for the three monthsdedidne 30, 2014 was $4.2 millior
catastrophe losses resulting from storm activitthe United States and Europe. Partially offsgttinese losses was $14.4 million of
favorable development on prior accident year lesenves, primarily attributable to favorable depetent in the general liability and prope
lines partially offset by unfavorable developmenttie commercial automobile and commercial multitp@es.

Consolidated losses and loss adjustment expenses$8&4.3 million and $367.6 million for the six mbs ended June 30, 2015 and 2
respectively. Included in losses and loss adjustre&penses for the six months ended June 30, 20d52014 were $5.3 million and $
million, respectively, in catastrophe losses. udeld in losses and loss adjustment expenses faixteonths ended June 30, 2014 was
million for large losses for the 2014 accident yelcluded in losses and loss adjustment expeonsdbe six months ended June 30, 2015
$8.7 million in net favorable loss reserve develepmon prior accident years compared to $23.3 anillin net favorable loss rese
development on prior accident years for the samieghén 2014.

The following table summarizes the above referernossi reserve development with respect to prior jgss reserves by line of business fol
six months ended June 30, 2015.

Net Reserve

2014 Development Percent of

(in millions) Net Reserves (Favorable)/Unfavorable 2014 Net Reserve

General liability $ 913.C $ (15.0) -1.6%
Workers compensatic 327.¢ 6.3 1.9%
Syndicate 1200 proper 99.2 (3.2 -3.2%
Syndicate 1200 liabilit 202.4 0.6 0.3%
Commercial mul-peril 164.€ 111 6.7%
Commercial auto liability 158.: (4.8) -3.0%
Reinsuranc«- nonproportional assumed prope 79.7 (3.8) -4.8%
Syndicate 1200 special 18.7 (1.2 -5.9%
All other lines 173.5 1.2 0.7%
Total $ 2,137.1  $ (8.7 -0.4%
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In determining appropriate reserve levels for tlxa®onths ended June 30, 2015, we maintained time ggeneral processes and disciplines
were used to set reserves at prior reporting datessignificant changes in methodologies were madestimate the reserves since the
reporting date; however, at each reporting dateemassess the actuarial estimate of the reserviogees and loss adjustment expense:
record our best estimate. Consistent with prigeree valuations, as claims data becomes more en&urprior accident years, actua
estimates were refined to weigh certain actuariethmds more heavily in order to respond to any gimgrtrends in the paid and reported
data. While prior accident yeansét reserves for losses and loss adjustment expéoissome lines of business have developed falyoia
recent years, this does not imply that more reeauident yearsteserves will also develop favorably; pricing, mimance costs, leg
environment, general economic conditions includihgnges in inflation and many other factors impaahagement’s ultimate loss estimates.

When determining reserve levels, we recognize tthete are several factors that present challengésiacertainties to the estimation of
loss reserves. Examples of these uncertaintidsdaahanges to the reinsurance structure and ftarcreases in inflation. Our net retail
losses vary by product and they have generallyeas®d over time. To properly recognize these taio&es, actuarial reviews have gi
significant consideration to the paid and incurBsinhuetter-Ferguson (“BF'Ihethodologies. Compared with other actuarial nedhagies
the paid and incurred BF methods assign smalleghwed actual reported loss experience, with theaast weight assigned to an expecte
planned loss ratio. The expected or planned lass has typically been determined using variowiamptions pertaining to prospective |
frequency and loss severity. In setting reservdsiae 30, 2015, we continued to consider the gadédincurred BF methods for recent years.

Our loss reserve estimates gradually blend in #sults from development and frequency/severity odlogies over time. For gene
liability estimates, our own loss experience is démed fully credible for several years afterdghd of an accident year. We rely primarily
the BF methods during that period. For propertgitess, our loss reserve estimates also blend dnrebults from development ¢
frequency/severity methodologies over time. Fapprty lines, in contrast to general liability estites, where loss reporting and claims clc
patterns settle more quickly, we give greater wieigtidevelopment methods starting at the end oativédent year.

For the Rureff Lines segment, in determining appropriate resdevels, we maintained the same general processkslisciplines that we
used to set reserves at prior reporting dateschdages in key assumptions were made to estimateslerves since the last reporting date.

Consolidated gross reserves for losses and losstatint expenses were $3,078.2 million (includif@.% million of reserves attributable
Syndicate 1200 segment's trade capital providerd) $8,067.9 million (including $70.2 million of mwes attributable to Syndicate 1.
segment trade capital providers) as of June 30, 2015281d}, respectively. Management has recorded &t dstimate of loss reserve:
each date based on current known facts and cirammess. Due to the significant uncertainties inhieire the estimation of loss reserves, tl
can be no assurance that future loss developnsamtable or unfavorable, will not occur.

Consolidated underwriting, insurance and acquisiégpenses were $139.5 million and $269.1 millionthe three and six months ended .
30, 2015, respectively, compared to $136.8 milkord $265.5 million for the same periods in 2014e Tecline in the consolidated expe
ratio for 2015 as compared to 2014 was primarityitattable to a reduction in the accrual for premitaxes and other assessments due
change in accounting estimate, partially offseifmreased expense for our equity compensation mlaago increases in the fair value of
common stock.

Consolidated interest expense was $4.6 million & million for the three and six months endedeJ&6, 2015, respectively, compare:
$5.1 million and $10.1 million for the same periadgled 2014. The decline in consolidated intezrpense was the result of extinguishr
in July 2014 of a junior subordinated debenture.

Consolidated foreign currency exchange loss wa$ $3llion and $3.4 million for the three months eddJune 30, 2015 and 20
respectively. For the six months ended June 3052€onsolidated foreign currency exchange gaing #6.6 million compared to a fore
currency exchange loss of $3.2 million for the sgragod ended 2014. The changes in the foreigrenay exchange gains/losses were di
fluctuations of the U.S Dollar, on a weighted agerdasis, against the currencies in which we t@rma business. During the second qu
of 2015, the United States Dollar declined agathstBritish Pound, the Euro and the Canadian Dollkor the first six months of 2015,
United States Dollar appreciated against all majorencies, except the British Pound, which wasmsally flat.

The consolidated provision for income taxes was$ $6illion and $10.4 million for the three and sionths ended June 30, 2015, respecti
compared to $6.1 million and $8.6 million for themse periods ended 2014. The income tax provigipmesents the income tax expe
associated with our operations based on the tax ¢tdvthe jurisdictions in which we operate. Theref the
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provision for income taxes represents taxes onnuame for our United States, Ireland, Belgium, AraSwitzerland and United Kingdc
operations. The income tax provisions for theahaad six months ended June 30, 2015 and 201¢e yweimarily attributable to our Unit
States operations.

Segment Results

We are primarily engaged in writing property anduety insurance and reinsurance. We have fouringgeporting segments: Excess
Surplus Lines, Commercial Specialty, InternatioBpécialty and Syndicate 1200. Additionally, we havRuneff Lines segment for produt
that we no longer underwrite.

We consider many factors, including the natureamhesegmens’ insurance and reinsurance products, productioress, distribution strateg
and regulatory environment, in determining howdgragate reporting segments.

In evaluating the operating performance of our sags) we focus on core underwriting and investiguits before consideration of reali
gains or losses from the sales of investmentsrde¢gnent transactions are allocated to the segthattnitiated the transaction. Reali
investment gains and losses are reported as a camnpof the Corporate and Other segment, as dasisagarding the acquisition and disp
of securities reside with the corporate investnfentction and are not under the control of the ifdiial business segments. Although
measure of profit (loss) does not replace net ire@loss) computed in accordance with GAAP as a oreas profitability, management u:
this measure of profit (loss) to focus our rep@ti®egments on generating operating income.

Since we generally manage and monitor the invedtmentfolio on an aggregate basis, the overallgrenince of the investment portfolio
related net investment income is discussed abova oonsolidated basis under consolidated net imargtincome rather than within or
segment.

Excess and SurplusLines

The following table summarizes the results of ofjens for the Excess and Surplus Lines segment:

Three Months Ended June 30 Six Months Ended June 30
(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Gross written premium $ 196.2 $ 175.€ $ 358.t $ 315.¢
Earned premium 131.1 125.2 2542 % 2427
Losses and loss adjustment expel 71.8 64.3 137.2 129.2
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 42.€ 40.2 82.6 80.3
Underwriting income 16.7 20.8 34.4 33.2
Net investment incom 9.0 9.0 17.5 18.3
Interest expens (1.5) (1.6) (3.0) (3.2)
Income before income tax $ 24.2 $ 282 % 48.¢ $ 48.3
Loss ratia 54.8% 51.3% 54.C% 53.2%
Expense ratit 32.5% 32.1% 32.5% 33.1%
Combined ratic 87.3% 83.4% 86.5% 86.3%

The increase in gross written and earned premiam#hé three and six months ended June 30, 20tbrapared to the same periods in Z
was primarily attributable to increased underwgtiactivity in the casualty, management liabilityroes and omissions and environme
units. Partially offsetting these increases weiced writings in the transportation, contract praperty units. The Excess and Surplus
segment has been impacted by increased competitidideclining rates.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expensabdahree months ended June 30, 2015 was $1.lomifl catastrophe losses resulting fi
spring storm activity. Offsetting these losses %8 million of net favorable loss reserve devaiept on prior accident years primarily wit
the general and products liability, commercial autbile and property lines. Included in losses ls$ adjustment expenses for the t
months ended June 30, 2014 was $0.6 million instaiphe losses resulting from spring storm actiaity $4.0 million in current accident y
large property losses. Offsetting these losses $1&s7 million of net favorable loss reserve depeient on prior accident years prima
within the general and products liability linestafsiness, partially offset by unfavorable develophie commercial automobile lines.
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Included in losses and loss adjustment expensefdosix months ended June 30, 2015 was $2.0ignilin catastrophe losses resulting fi
spring storm activity. Offsetting these losses was $Iillion of net favorable loss reserve developmentpoior accident years primar
within the general and products liability, commeat@utomobile and prperty lines. Included in losses and loss adjustragpenses for the ¢
months ended June 30, 2014 was $2.4 million instatghe losses from spring storm activity and $#éillion in 2014 accident year lar(
property losses. Offsetting these catastheplosses was $21.7 million of net favorable losserve development on prior accident y
primarily within the general and products liabilliges of business, partially offset by unfavorataelopment in commercial automobile
property lines.

The increase in the expense ratio for the threetimsoended June 30, 2015 as compared to the sarnoel per2014 was primarily due
increased compensation and technology expensédillyanffset by reductions in bad debt expense emdtingent commissions payable.
decline in the expense ratio for the six monthseendline 30, 2015 as compared to the same periatl @d.4 was primarily attributable
reduced expenses resulting from the cancellatianrefnsurance contract.

Commercial Specialty

The following table summarizes the results of ofjens for the Commercial Specialty segment:

Three Months Ended June 30 Six Months Ended June 30
(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Gross written premium $ 2L $ 83.6 $ 199.5 3 189.F
Earned premium $ 717 % 711 % 1442 3% 142.¢
Losses and loss adjustment expel 46.7 47.7 95.6 95.4
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 22.€ 25.8 454 50.9
Underwriting income (loss 2.4 (2.9) 3.3 (3.5)
Net investment incom 4.7 4.6 9.2 9.3
Interest expens (0.8) (0.8) (1.6) (1.6)
Fee expense, n (1.7 (1.9 (2.5) (3.0)
Income before income (loss) taxes $ 46 $ (0.5 $ 84 $ 1.2
Loss ratio 65.2% 67.0% 66.2% 66.8%
Expense ratit 31.5% 36.4% 31.5% 35.7%
Combined ratic 96.7% 103.4% 97.7% 102.5%

The increase in gross written and earned premiuassprimarily attributable to increased premium wgs in all lines with the exceptions
our grocery and retail businesses. Gross writt@mums were negatively impacted by decreasingsratel increasing competition coug
with adverse economic conditions in the energyraiming sectors.

Included in the loss ratio for the three monthseshdune 30, 2015 was $4.4 million of net unfavarat#velopment on prior accident y
reserves primarily attributable to unfavorable depment in the general liability and workers comgagion lines, partially offset by favora
development in the shot&il and auto liability lines. Also included inds expense for the three months ended June 30 v2x$0.8 million ¢
catastrophe losses resulting from spring stormslutled in the loss ratio for the three months dniitne 30, 2014 was $2.9 million of
unfavorable development on prior accident yearrueseprimarily attributable to unfavorable develaprhin the general liability and ai
liability lines, partially offset by favorable delepment in the shottiail and workers compensation lines. Also includetbss expense for t
three months ended June 30, 2014 was $2.6 milficatastrophe losses resulting from spring storms.

Included in the loss ratio for the six months endede 30, 2015 was $11.6 million of net unfavoratdeelopment on prior accident y
reserves primarily attributable to unfavorable depment in the general liability and workers comgagion lines, partially offset by favora
development in the shot&il and auto liability lines. Also included inds expense for the six months ended June 30, 2683% %3 million ¢
catastrophe losses resulting from spring stormslutled in the loss ratio for the six months endede 30, 2014 was $4.9 million of
unfavorable development on prior accident yearrueseprimarily attributable to unfavorable develarhin the general liability and ai
liability lines, partially offset by favorable delepment in the shottiail and workers compensation lines. Also includetbss expense for t
six months ended June 30, 2014 was $4.0 milliacatdstrophe losses resulting from spring storms.

The decline in the expense ratio for the three sinanonths ended June 30, 2015 as compared tathe periods ended 2014 was prim:
attributable to reduced acquisition expense due ttecline in the accrual for premiums taxes ancroissessments due to a chang
accounting estimate.
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The decrease in net fee expense for the threeiamdosiths ended June 30, 2015 as compared to 2@%4vmarily attributable to the matui
of the fee based business. In 2014, we begariftesstect functions from risk bearing activiti Bsnon risk-bearing activities, as wentinue:
to develop our fee-based business. As a reseltexipenses associated with the lfesed operations exceeded the income receivedhdsi
activities, resulting in increased net fee expdoséhe thre e and six months ended June 30, 2014.

International Specialty

The following table summarizes the results of ofjens for the International Specialty segment:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Gross written premium $ 100.E $ 974 $ 170.: $ 180.€
Earned premium $ 3823 $ 376 % 756 $ 74.6
Losses and loss adjustment expel 17.7 18.2 34.5 37.0
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 14.1 15.1 27.€ 27.5

Underwriting income 6.5 4.3 135 10.1
Net investment incom 3.0 2.0 5.9 3.8
Interest expens (0.7) (0.7) (1.5) (1.5)

Income before income tax $ 88 $ 56 $ 179 $ 12.4
Loss ratia 46.C% 48.4% 45.6% 49.6%
Expense ratit 36.5% 40.5% 36.4% 36.9%
Combined ratic 82.5% 88.9% 82.C% 86.5%

Gross written premiums increased for the three hoanhded June 30, 2015 as compared to the samd pe@l014 due to increases in the s
tail property reinsurance and the casualty linastigly offset by reductions in the professioriabllity lines and in our Brazil operations.
decline in gross written premiums for the six men¢imded June 30, 2015 as compared to the samd pe@614 was primarily due to declit
in the short tail property reinsurance, profesdidiadility lines and in our Brazil operations. &Hines written by the International Speci
segment continue to be highly competitive. Thedase in earned premiums for the three and six mscemded June 30, 2015 as compar
the same periods in 2014 was primarily due to acton in our ceding percentages, coupled withangke in business mix.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expensethéothree months ended June 30, 2015 was $1.Bbmifl net favorable development
prior accident year loss reserves primarily in pssfonal lines and short tail property reinsuramcampared to no development on p
accident year loss reserves for the three monttiecedune 30, 2014. The International Specialtyngseg reported no catastrophe losses fc
three months ended June 30, 2015. Included ir$oard loss adjustment expenses for the three mentted June 30, 2014 was $1.0 mi
in catastrophe losses resulting from Europeanshaims.

Included in losses and loss adjustment expensdahdagix months ended June 30, 2015 was $3.7 mitif;met favorable development on p
accident year loss reserves primarily in our skaittproperty reinsurance, professional liabilitydacasualty lines. Included in losses and
adjustment expenses for the six months ended JOn20 4 was $0.4 million of net unfavorable develept on prior accident year I
reserves primarily for our Brazil operations. bmtd in losses and loss adjustment expenses faixtraonths ended June 30, 2015 was
million in catastrophe losses resulting from stativity, compared to $2.0 million for the sameipérin 2014, as discussed above.

The decline in the expense ratio for the three sirdnonths ended June 30, 2015 as compared to R34 rimarily attributable to reduc
technology and payroll related expenses.
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Syndicate 1200

The following table summarizes the results of ofjens for the Syndicate 1200 segment:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Gross written premium $ 168.2 $ 163.E $ 305.¢ $ 297.1
Earned premium $ 1045 $ 1022 $ 206.4 3% 201.t
Losses and loss adjustment expel 53.6 52.2 106.1 97.7
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance exper 43.5 43.0 83.8 83.6

Underwriting income 7.4 7.0 16.5 20.2
Net investment incom 2.4 2.1 4.6 5.8
Interest expens (0.6) (0.8) (1.3) (1.6)
Fee income, ne¢ 0.9 1.8 1.3 15

Income before income tax $ 101 $ 101 $ 211 $ 25.9
Loss ratio 51.3% 51.1% 51.4% 48.5%
Expense ratit 41.7% 42.1% 40.6% 41.5%
Combined ratic 93.0% 93.2% 92.0% 90.0%

For 2015, we reduced our participation percentad®o, down from 75% for 2014. The increase irsgnaritten and earned premiums for
three months ended June 30, 2015 as compared &athe period in 2014 was primarily attributabldricreases in property, specialty .
aerospace divisions, as we continued to estabéshproducts and expand profitable lines. Partiaffgetting these increases were declini
premiums for the liability and marine and energye$. Additionally, operations in China and Singapoontributed $3.1 million in gross writl
premiums for the three months ended June 30, 284 Bhese offices began writing premiums in thestgttart of 2014. For the six mon
ended June 30, 2015, the increase in gross wptEmiums was attributable to increases in all limasept property. Operations in China
Singapore contributed $7.1 million in gross writ@emiums for the six months ended June 30, 2@EEsned premiums reflect the increas
gross written premiums combined with a reductioncefled premiums as we restructured our reinsurpnegrams. The Syndicate 1:
segment has been adversely impacted by increasepgletition in the first half of 2015.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses are repotted losses ceded to the trade capital provid&re Syndicate 1200 segment reporte
catastrophe for the three months ended June 36, 201 $1.0 million in catastrophe losses for flkev®onths ended June 30, 2015, comp
to no catastrophe losses for the same periods e2@fetl Included in losses and loss adjustmentresgsefor the three months ended Jun
2015 was $2.2 million of net favorable loss resatgeelopment on prior accident years primarilyilatttable to favorable development in
property, general liability and specialty linesicluded in losses and loss adjustment expensdbdahree months ended June 30, 2014
$6.4 million of net favorable loss reserve develepinon prior accident years primarily attributatefavorable development in the propi
lines, partially offset by unfavorable developminthe general liability line. Included in loss&sd loss adjustment expenses for the six m
ended June 30, 2015 was $2.5 million of net faverétiss reserve development on prior accident yparsarily attributable to favorak
development in the property and specialty linestiglly offset by unfavorable development in thablility and aerospace lines. Includet
losses and loss adjustment expenses for the sixhmended June 30, 2014 was $15.2 million net &hlerloss reserve development on
accident years primarily attributable to favoratievelopment in the property, professional indemaityl aerospace linegartially offset b
unfavorable development in the general liabilityeli

The decline in the expense ratio for the three sirRdnonths ended June 30, 2015 as compared toathe period in 2014 was primal
attributable to a decline in fixed expenses coupléh an increase in earned premiums.

Fee income, net represents fees and profit commnisérived from the management of third party egdir our underwriting syndicate
Lloyd’s. The decline in net fee income for the threesiranonths ended June 30, 2015 as compared &athe periods in 2014 was prima
due to timing differences in revenues earned irst@nd quarter of 2014 as compared to the exparaesed.
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Run-off Lines

The following table summarizes the results of ofjens for the Run-off Lines segment:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Earned premium $ 04 $ 0.1 % 01 $ 0.2
Losses and loss adjustment exper 0.8 2.7 0.9 8.3
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance
expense: 2.6 2.4 2.6 5.1
Underwriting loss (3.0 (5.2 (3.4) (13.2
Net investment incom 2.1 2.3 41 4.8
Fee income, ne 0.1 — 0.1 —
Interest expens (0.3) (0.5) (0.7) (0.9
Income (loss) before income tay $ (1.1) $ 34 % 01 $ (9.3)

Earned premiums for the three and six months eddee 30, 2015 and 2014 were primarily attributabledjustments resulting from fit
audits, reinstatement premiums and other adjussr@npolicies previously underwritten.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses for the thoe¢thmended June 30, 2015 was the result of nevardble loss reserve developmen
prior accident years due to unfavorable developrnireour runeff workers compensation lines, driven by the imipafcdiscount unwind, ar
our other assumed business. Losses and lossradjutsexpenses for the three months ended JuneD3@,\8as the result of net unfavore
loss reserve development on prior accident yeaestdwnfavorable asbestos and environmental dewednpdriven by asbestos liability
assumed business and unfavorable development iruowwoff workers compensation lines.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses for the sixnsmemded June 30, 2015 was the result of net ardhle prior accident year loss rest
development in our run-off workers compensation aslukestos liability lines partially offset by navbrable reserve development in our ofh-
reinsurance lines. Losses and loss adjustmeninsgpdor the six months ended June 30, 2014 wase#udt of net unfavorable loss rese
development on prior accident years due to unfdterdevelopment in workers compensation driven fyeasing medical costs on ol
claims and unfavorable asbestos and environmeatalodpment driven by asbestos liability for assurmesiness.

The following table represents a reconciliatiortatfl gross and net reserves for the Réfnkines. Amounts in the net column are reduce
reinsurance recoverable.

Six Months Ended June 30,

2015 2014

(in millions) Gross Net Gross Net
Asbestos and environment

Loss reserves, beginning of per $ 538 $ 503 $ 5H7E $ 533

Incurred losse 1.0 1.0 3.5 2.9

Losses pait (4.3 (3.6) (10.2) (8.9)
Loss reserve- asbestos and environmental, end of pe 50.6 47.7 50.8 47.3
Risk management reserv 249.5 163.C 262.€ 172.7
Rur-off reinsurance reservi 4.3 4.3 4.8 4.8
Other rur-off lines 3.2 3.0 3.4 3.2
Total loss reserve- Rur-off Lines $ 307€ $ 218.C $ 3216 $ 228.C

Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenseshe Runeff Lines segment consists primarily of adminidtratexpenses. The increas
underwriting expense for the three months ende@ B 2015 as compared to the same period in 2@E4dwe to the recognition of $
million in bad debt expense. The decline in undiing expense for the six months ended June 30523 compared to the same peria
2014 was due to a $2.2 million decline in the aakfor premium taxes and other assessments duehtaraye in accounting estimate.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The primary sources of our cash flows are premiumassurance recoveries, proceeds from sales atehwygions of investments ¢
investment income. The primary cash outflows aa@tipayments, loss adjustment expenses, reinsucaste and operating
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ex penses. Additional cash outflow occurs through payts of underwriting and acquisition costs suctt@®missions, taxes, payroll ¢
general overhead expenses. Management believegdbhtreceipts from premiums, proceeds from investrsales and redentjpns ani
investment income are sufficient to cover cashlows in the foreseeable future. Should the needdaiitional cash arise, we believe we |
access to additional sources of liquidity.

Cash provided (used) by operating activities caatflate due to timing difference in the collectafpremiums and reinsurance recoveries
the payment of losses and expenses. For the sixthsi@nded June 30, 2015, net cash provided by tpgractivities was $94.6 millic
compared to net cash used by operating activiti€®28.5 million for the six months ended June 3014 The increase in cash flows fr
operating activities from 2015 to 2014 was drivgrtlie timing of reinsurance payments primarily camtcated in the Syndicate 1200 segn
partially offset by the first quarter 2014 partggdttlement of a whole account quota share cont@gtring the Syndicate 1200 segment
reserves for the 2009 and prior years of account.

For the six months ended June 30, 2015, net camth lys investing activities was $31.9 million comgzhto net cash provided by inves!
activities of $39.5 million for the six months endéune 30, 2014. The decrease in cash flows fremsting activities from 2015 to 2014 v
mainly the result of purchases of fixed maturityl aortterm investments, partially offset by the inflowazfsh from maturities and mandat
calls of fixed maturity investments. As of June 20,15, $322.7 million of the investment portfoli@svinvested in shoterm investment
Included in purchases of fixed assets for the sixtims ended June 30, 2015 was $42.6 million agsakiaith the acquisition of real est
holdings, which were purchased on our behalf byir@-party intermediary using funds held in escrow fritra fourth quarter 2014 sale of
Torrance, California real estate holdings, as msly disclosed in our December 31, 2014 Form 10-K.

For the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014;ash used by financing activities was $37.4 omlland $37.6 million, respective
During the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 20a#epurchased approximately 489,096 and 675,300 slohreur commao
stock for a total cost of $24.9 million and $31.dlion, respectively. We paid cash dividends to ainareholde
totaling $11.2 million and $8.7 million during tBex months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, resplyctive

On March 7, 2014, each of Argo Group, Argo Group, U., Argo International Holdings Limited, and g&r Underwriting Agency Limite
(the “Borrowers”) entered into a $175.0 million dittagreement (“Credit Agreement®jith JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administri
agent. The Credit Agreement provides for a $175I0om revolving credit facility with a maturity de of March 7, 2018 unless extende
accordance with the terms of the Credit AgreemBotrowings under the Credit Agreement may be usgdgéneral corporate purpos
including working capital and permitted acquisigpand each of the Borrowers has agreed to bdyj@nt severally liable for the obligatic
of the other Borrowers under the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement contains customary eventetdudt. If an event of default occurs and is cautig, the Borrowers could be requiret
repay all amounts outstanding under the Credit &guent. Lenders holding at least a majority of tenk and commitments under the Ci
Agreement may elect to accelerate the maturitheflbans and/or terminate the commitments unde€tedit Agreement upon the occurre
and during the continuation of an event of defahtt.defaults or events of defaults have occurredf #ise date of this filing.

Included in the Credit Agreement is a provisiont thbows up to $17.5 million of the revolving crediacility to be used for letters of cre
(“LOCs"), subject to availability. As of June 30, 2015, tharere no borrowings outstanding and $0.2 millionLidCs against the Cre
Facility.

On February 17, 2015, our Board of Directors decla 10% stock dividend, payable on March 16, 2@dShareholders of record at the ¢
of business on March 2, 2015. Shareholders recaiast in lieu of fractional shares. On August 41%0our Board of Directors declare
quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $0.20 acheshare of common stock outstanding. The divideilide paid on September 15, 201!
shareholders of record at the close of businessemtember 1, 2015.

On November 5, 2013, our Board authorized the @msge of up to $150.0 million of our common sh4f2813 Repurchase Authorization”
The 2013 Repurchase Authorization supersedes alptbvious repurchase authorizations. These slaaeebeing held as treasury share
accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda CangsaAct 1981. As of June 30, 2015, availabilitgdenthe 2013 Repurchase Authoriza
for future repurchases of our common shares wa®93%6iflion.

Refer to Part Il, Item 7 - “Management’s Discussamd Analysis of Financial Condition and ResultsOgferations -Liquidity and Capite
Resources” in Argo Group’s Annual Report on FormKLlr the year ended December 31, 2014 that Argou@rfiled with the SEC ¢
February 27, 2015 for further discussion on Argou@'s liquidity.
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Recent Accounting Standards and Critical Accountingestimates
New Accounting Standar:

The discussion of the adoption and pending adomifaecently issued accounting policies is includedNote 2, ‘Recently Issued Accounti
Standards,” in the Notes to the Consolidated FisdiStatements, included in Part |, ltem 1 - “Cdiaged Financial Statements (unaudited).”

Critical Accounting Estimates

Refer to “Critical Accounting Estimates” in the Cpany’s Annual Report on Form Xfor the year ended December 31, 2014 that we
with the SEC on February 27, 2015 for information accounting policies that we consider criticalpieparing our consolidated financ
statements. These policies include significantnesties made by management using information availabthe time the estimates were m
However, these estimates could change materialifférent information or assumptions were used.

ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures hout Market Risk

We believe that we are principally exposed to thypes of market risk: interest rate risk, creiikrand foreign currency risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Our fixed investment portfolio is exposed to intreate risk. Fluctuations in interest rates haw#ract impact on the fair valuation of th
securities. As interest rates rise, the fair valfieur fixed maturity portfolio generally falls, dnihe converse is generally also true. We ma
interest rate risk through an asset liability stggtthat involves the selection of investments \aipipropriate characteristics, such as dure
yield, currency and liquidity that are tailored ttee anticipated cash outflow characteristics of adilities. A significant portion of tF
investment portfolio matures each quarter, alloworgeinvestment at current market rates.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is a major factor of our overall entésp risk, and we have established policies andgutares to evaluate our exposure to credit
particularly with respect to our investment holdirand our receivable balances. In particular, eesaposed to credit risk on losses recove
from reinsurers and receivables from insureds. Doms in one sector or market can adversely imptwr sectors and may result in hig
credit exposure. We do not currently use crediadiéswaps to mitigate our credit exposure frorhegiinvestments or counterparties.

We have exposure to credit risk primarily as a bplof fixed maturity investments, shaerm investments and other investments, which g
from the uncertainty associated with a financiadtioment obligois ability to make timely principal and/or intergsayments. Our ris
management strategy and investment policy attemaptmitigate this risk by primarily investing in delmstruments of high credit qual
issuers, limiting credit concentrations and divigisg issuers, and frequently monitoring the cregliality of issuers and counterparties.

We also have credit exposure related to receivdites reinsurers and insureds, and control thik bg limiting our exposure to any ¢
counterparty and evaluating the financial stremgftlour reinsurance counterparties, including gdheraquiring minimum credit ratings.
certain cases, we also receive collateral from austomers and reinsurance counterparties, whichcesdour credit exposure in cer
instances.
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As shown on the accompanying table, our fixed ni@sr portfolio is diversified among different typef investments. The securities
principally rated by one or more Nationally Recagu Statistical Rating Organizations (i.e ., Stadda Poor’'s, Moodys Investors Service
Inc., and Fitch Ratings, Ltd). If a security ha®tkatings, the lower rating is used, and if a sigiias three ratings, the middle rating is use¢
the prepar ation of this table. At June 30 , 2@, fixed maturities portfolio had a weighted aggraating of A+, with 71.0 % ( $2@llion
fair v alue) rated A or better and 31.7% ($875.Hiom fair value) rated AAA. Our portfolio includeti0.7% ($294.9nillion fair value) of les
than investment grade (BB+ or lower) fixed matestat June 30, 2015.

Fair Value
(in millions) AAA AA A Other Total
USD denominatec
U.S. Government $ 1844 $ — % — 06 $ 185.C
Non-U.S. Government 33.5 14.5 6.1 30.3 84.4
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 117.4 273.C 80.C 22.1 492.¢
Credi-Financial 4.1 49.3 261.5 154.7 469.€
Credi-Industrial 2.4 12.5 94.8 325.€ 435.E
Credi-Utility — 13.0 25.7 105.€ 144.¢
Structured securitie!
CMO/MBS-agency 149.C — — — 149.C
CMO/MBS-non agenc! — 7.9 0.7 4.3 12.9
CMBS 90.C 354 8.5 28.4 162.3
ABS 164.1 8.7 31.7 41.4 245.¢
Foreign denominate:
Government: 98.5 354 3.0 27.2 164.1
Credit 31.8 41,7 82.9 61.8 218.2
Total fixed maturitie: $ 875.2 $ 4917 $ 594¢ $ 802.2 $ 2,764.(

We also hold a diversified investment portfolio @dmmon stocks in various industries and market sedgsn ranging from small mar!
capitalization stocks to large capitalization comipa. Marketable equity securities are carried wn@onsolidated Balance Sheets at fair vi
and are subject to the risk of potential loss inValue resulting from adverse changes in priégslune 30, 2015, the fair value of our eq
securities portfolio was $486.6 million.

Foreign Currency Risk

We have exposure to foreign currency risk in bath iasurance contracts and invested assets, aadesser extent in a portion of our d
Some of our insurance contracts provide that uténh@sses may be payable in various foreign cuiesné&oreign currency exchange rate
exists where we do not have cash or securitiesrderabed in the currency for which we will ultimatgbay the claims. Thus, we attemp
manage our foreign currency risk by seeking to tnadar liabilities under insurance and reinsuranoécps that are payable in fore
currencies with cash and investments that are devated in such currencies. In certain instancesyseeforeign exchange forward contrac
mitigate this risk. Due to the extended time frafioresettling the claims plus the fluctuation in @mcy exchange rates, the potential exist
us to realize gains and/or losses related to forexghange rates. In addition, we may experienogidio currency gains or losses relate
exchange rate fluctuations in operating expenseg/ain operating costs are payable in curreratiesr than the U.S. Dollar. For the three
six months ended June 30, 2015, we recorded rddlizses of $3.0 million and realized gains of $@iion, respectively, from movements
foreign currency rates on our insurance operatibmaddition, we recorded realized losses of $2iliam and $8.2 million from movements
foreign currency rates in our investment portfaiod realized losses of $3.8 million and realizethgaf $6.9 million from our curren
forward contracts for the three and six months dnlisme 30, 2015, respectively. We had unrealizese® at June 30, 2015 of $32.2 millio
movements on foreign currency rates in our investnpartfolio, which are recorded in “Other compresige income, net of taxesi our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. These losses arépafigaelated to the strengthening of the U.S.|Broversus other foreign currencies.
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| tem 4. Controls and Procedures

Argo Group, under the supervision and with theipgation of its management, including the ChiekEutive Officer and the Chief Financ
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the desigd operation of our “disclosure controls and pdoces” (as defined in Rules 13&{e) an
15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1@34amended (“Exchange Act'as of the end of the period covered by this repim
designing and evaluating these disclosure contmodsprocedures, Argo Group and its management nezthat any controls and procedu
no matter how well designed and operated, can geownly reasonable assurance of achieving theedesontrol objectives, and managen
necessarily was required to apply its judgmentalgating and implementing possible controls aratpdures. Based upon that evaluatior
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeoncluded that the disclosure controls and proe=dwere effective at the reasoni
assurance level to ensure that information requidake disclosed by Argo Group in the reports fitwdsubmitted under the Exchange Act
recorded, processed, summarized and reported viitbitime periods specified in the SEC’s rules famohs.

There were no changes in the internal control éwancial reporting made during the quarter endateJ30, 2015 that materially affected
are reasonably likely to materially affect, oureimtal control over financial reporting. We reviewr disclosure controls and procedures, w
may include internal controls over financial repagt on an ongoing basis. From time to time, managnt makes changes to enhanci
effectiveness of these controls and ensure thgtdbetinue to meet the needs of our business desvaver time.

PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Our subsidiaries are parties to legal actions #midl to their business. Based on the opinion afneel, management believes that
resolution of these matters will not materiallyesff our financial condition or results of operation

Item 1A. Risk Factors

See “Risk Factors” in the Argo Group Annual Repamt Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2014 for a dmtailiscussion of ti
additional risk factors affecting us.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities ahUse of Proceeds
Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities

On November 5, 2013, our Board authorized the @msge of up to $150.0 million of our common sh4f2813 Repurchase Authorization”
The 2013 Repurchase Authorization supersedeseaprigvious Repurchase Authorizations.

From January 1, 2015 through June 30, 2015, we hgperchased a total 489,096 shares of our comrhares for a total cost of $2:
million. Since the inception of the repurchasehattations through June 30, 2015, we have repsath®,095,585 shares of our comi
stock at an average price of $35.87 for a totat 0c6$326.3 million. These shares are being hsldreasury shares in accordance with
provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Aslune 30, 2015, availability under the 2013 Repase Authorization for futu
repurchases of our common shares was $67.9 million.

The following table provides information with regpéo shares of our common stock that were repsethar surrendered during the tt
months ended June 30, 2015:

Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Shares Purchased Value of Shares
Total Number Average as Part of Publically That May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid Announced Plan Purchased Under the
Period Purchased (a) per Share (b) or Program (c) Plan or Program (d)
April 1 through April 30, 201! 65,165 $ 50.3¢ 28,38t $ 73,259,76
May 1 through May 31, 201 108,10: $ 49.8¢ 107,65¢ $ 67,890,29.
June 1 through June 30, 2C — — $ 67,890,29:
Total 173,267 136,04

Employees are allowed to surrender shares to skéléax liability incurred upon the vesting or mise of shares under our various emplo
equity compensation plans. For the six months @érldme 30, 2015, we received 37,225 shares of @mumon stock, with an average pi
paid per share of $51.02 that were surrenderedripfayees in payment for the minimum required witlding taxes.
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In the above table, these shares are includedlimes (a) and (b), but excluded from ashns (c) and (d). These shares do not reduc
number of shares that may yet be purchased undeegurchase plan.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable

Item 5. Other Information
None.

ltem 6. Exhibits

A list of exhibits required to be filed as parttbfs report is set forth in the Exhibit Index ofgfForm 10Q, which immediately precedes s
exhibits, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number
12.1

31.1
31.2
32.1+

32.2+

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Description

Statements of Computation of Ratios of Earning&it®@d Charges and Earnings to Combined Fixed Chkaag¢
Preferred Share Dividen:

Rule 13&- 14(a)/15d¢- 14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Offic

Rule 13&- 14(a)/15d- 14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Offic

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant ¢tid®e906 o
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant ¢tidde906 o
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 200z

XBRL Instance Documert

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

+ This exhibit shall be deemed “file@r purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exgkafct of 1934, or otherwise subject to the lid
of that section, and shall not be deemed to berfrorated by reference into any filing under the8ities Act of 1933 or the Securit
Exchange Act of 193¢
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SIGNA TURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13¢)1of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, thgisteant has duly caused this report ti
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
August 7, 201! By /s/ Mark E. Watson |l

Mark E. Watson IlI
President and Chief Executive Offic

August 7, 201! By /s/ Jay S. Bullocl
Jay S. Bullock
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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ARGO GROUP INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, LTD.
STATEMENTS OF COMPUTATION OF RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
AND EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRE D SHARE DIVIDENDS

Earnings:
Income (loss) before provision for income
taxes
Add:
Fixed charge
Total earning:
Fixed charges
Interest expens
Rental interest factc
Total fixed charge

Ratio of earnings to fixed charg

(in millions, except ratios

Six Months Ended June 30

Exhibit 12.1

For the Years Ended December 31

2015 2014 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 971$ 874 % 216 $ 1797 $ 667 $ (619 $ 121.¢
11.9 125 248 251 284  26.7 26.6

$ 109.C $ 99.8 $ 240.€ $ 204 $

951 $ (35.2) $ 148.F

$ 95 % 101 $ 199 % 202 9% 237 % 221 % 22.9

2.4 2.4 4.9 4.9 4.7 4.6 3.7

$ 119 $ 125 % 2483% 251 % 284 3% 267 $ 26.6
9.2:1 8:1 9.7:1 8.2:1 3.3:1 (@) 5.6:1

(&) The coverage deficiency for the year ended Dece®be?011 is $61.9 millior



Exhibit 31.1

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

I, Mark E. Watson lll, President and Chief Execat®fficer of Argo Group International Holdings, Ltdertify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Forr-Q of Argo Group International Holdings, Lt
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omitadie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor
3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsible é&stablishing and maintaining disclosure contemsl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€k)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurde tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrie period in which this report is being prepa
b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahaaorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting anlde preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amuteuatures, as of the end of the period covered lsy rédport based on sL
evaluation; ant
d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt’'s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéfd, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte registrang internal contre
over financial reporting; an
5.  The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdsh on our most recent evaluation of internal @dntver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacoimmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theedent
functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contro¢ofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmnhcial information; ant
b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifrole in the registramst’
internal control over financial reportin
Date: August 7, 201 /s/ Mark E. Watson |l

Mark E. Watson I
President and Chief Executive Offic



Exhibit 31.2

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

I, Jay S. Bullock, Executive Vice President andeCRinancial Officer of Argo Group International ldings, Ltd., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Forr-Q of Argo Group International Holdings, Lt
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omitadie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor
3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsible é&stablishing and maintaining disclosure contemsl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€k)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurde tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrie period in which this report is being prepa
b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahaaorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting anlde preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amuteuatures, as of the end of the period covered lsy rédport based on sL
evaluation; ant
d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt’'s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéfd, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte registrang internal contre
over financial reporting; an
5.  The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdsh on our most recent evaluation of internal @dntver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacoimmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theedent
functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contro¢ofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmnhcial information; ant
b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifrole in the registramst’
internal control over financial reportin
Date: August 7, 201 /s/ Jay S. Bullocl

Jay S. Bullock
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on FormQ®f Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. (thEdmpany”)for the quarterly peric
ended June 30, 2015 as filed with the SecuritiesEairtchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R§pMark E. Watson 1ll, as Presidt
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, herebitifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as adopteduant to 8906 of the Sarbar@sley
Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA 1934, as amended; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

Certified this 7thday of August 201t /s/ Mark E. Watson |l
Mark E. Watson 1|
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on FormQ®f Argo Group International Holdings, Ltd. (thEdmpany”)for the quarterly peric
ended June 30, 2015 as filed with the SecuritiegsEacchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R§pday S. Bullock, as Executive V|
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Compalnereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350adopted pursuant to 8906 of
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that, to the best okhmwledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA 1934, as amended; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of

Company.
Certified this 7thday of August 201t /s/ Jay S. Bullocl
Jay S. Bullock

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



